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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of Tai Fung Bank Limited (the “Bank”)
submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December,

2024.

Business development and management report

The global economy in 2024 showed modest signs of
recovery. Inflation eased in most major economies, and
monetary policy began shifting toward interest rate
cuts. China’s economy remained generally stable,
though the pace of recovery lacked a solid foundation.
Weak domestic demand and subdued external markets
presented ongoing challenges. In Macao, while the
economic recovery continued, small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs) remained in a transitional phase,
facing short-term operational pressures. The banking
sector, both locally and globally, experienced
narrowing interest margins and increasing stress on
asset quality. These headwinds contributed to a decline
in the Bank’s income-generating capabilities, elevated
pressure on asset quality, and higher provisioning for
non-performing loans—resulting in a notable impact

on overall profitability.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Business development and management report
(continued)

Despite these challenges, the Bank maintained its core
stability and long-term development strategy. With a
strong commitment from our staff, we remained focused
on execution, innovation, and resilience. Throughout the
year, we continued to enhance our operating framework,
strengthen risk management capabilities, improve
business processes, and invest in technology upgrades—
laying a stronger foundation for future growth. Key
initiatives during the year included alignment with
national policy objectives, support for Macao’s economic
development, and active participation in “One Belt, One
Road” initiative. We also remained focused on
supporting local SMEs, enhancing digital platforms such
as Tai Fung Pay, and improving service efficiency and
effectiveness. Controlling the Bank’s risk remained a top
priority. We continued to strengthen our comprehensive
risk management framework and took decisive actions to
recover and resolve non-performing loans. We advanced
digital transformation efforts to increase operational
efficiency and drive sustainable growth. The Bank also
launched its ESG framework, improving long-term
sustainability practices, and implemented human capital
reforms to strengthen team capability and prepare for

future strategic needs.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Business development and management report
(continued)

Looking ahead to 2025, the Bank will remain focused on
its strategy of stable, high-quality growth. We will closely
monitor policy developments, expand and diversify our
product and service offerings, and leverage our brand
strength to deepen market penetration and improve
customer value. Risk management will continue to be
central to our operating model. We will enhance early
warning systems, strengthen credit monitoring, and
maintain discipline in managing exposures. The Bank
will also prioritise further development of its asset-
liability management practices, digital infrastructure,
and ESG capabilities to support long-term strategic
goals. Meanwhile, continuing to develop and explore
new business opportunities to increase the overall
income is considered to be another top priority in order
to solve the temporary difficulties that the Bank is

encountering for the time being.

As a financial institution rooted in Macao, Tai Fung Bank
remains committed to the principles of “One Country,
Two Systems” and continues to play an active role in
supporting the Macao’s economic development and
financial stability. Under the guidance of the Central and
Local Government as well as the strategic direction of
Macao’s “1+4” industry diversification framework, we
are confident in our ability to navigate challenges,
capitalise on opportunities, and contribute meaningfully
to the growth of modern finance and a more resilient,

diversified economy in Macao.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Results and appropriations

Loss before tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Retained earnings from previous year

The Board of Directors recommend the

appropriations as follows:

Proposed dividend of preference
shares

Proposed interest payment of
additional tier 1 capital

instrument

Retained earnings

BT TIT
MOP’000

(1,234,140)
(162,158)

(1,396,298)
5,458,032

4,061,734

324,750

163,770
3,573,214

4,061,734
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Major shareholders

As at 31 December 2024, the holding by the shareholders
and which represents 10% or more of the ordinary shares
were:

Bank of China Limited
The Family of Ho Yin

Corporate information

Chairing Committee of General Meeting

Chairman: Ho Kevin King Lun
Vice-Chairman: Bank of China Limited
Secretary: Yang Zhi Hong

Board of Directors
Chairman: Ho, Carlos
Vice-Chairman: Li Guang

(Resigned on 26 April 2024)
Jia Tianbing

(Appointed on 22 July 2024)
Executive Directors: Jiang Xin

Ho Hao Veng

Chui Kai Cheong
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Corporate information (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors: Fu Hau Chak
Ip Sio Kai
Ho Kevin King Lun
Ho King Man Justin
Ho, Leonardo
Chan Kim Peng
Chen Tainhong

Company Secretary  Yang Zhi Hong

Supervisory Committee

Chairman: Iong Weng Ian
Members: He Qiuping

Mok Chi Wai
On behalf of the Board

Ho, Carlos, Chairman

Macao, 21 March 2025
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OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

In accordance with the Commercial Code of Macao and the
Articles of Tai Fung Bank Limited, it is the responsibility of
the Supervisory Committee to oversee the Bank’s operation
and management, and express an opinion on the reports,
the annual financial statements and the proposal thereof
for the apportioning of the results submitted by the Board

of Directors.

During the year of 2024, the Supervisory Committee, in
fulfilling its responsibilities, has undertaken the
examination of the Bank’s operations as it may deem
necessary and reviewed the auditor’s report issued by
Ernst & Young on the unqualified financial statements for

the year 2024.

In our opinion, the Report of the Directors has
appropriately reflected the development of the Bank’s
business, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December
2024 and of its operating results for the year then ended.
The annual financial statements, the proposal for the
apportioning of results as well as other related reports
submitted by the Board of Directors are hence considered
to be appropriate for submission to the Annual General

Meeting for approval.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
Iong Weng Ian
21 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance of the Bank aims at maximizing
shareholders’ wealth and preventing conflicts of interest
among management and all stakeholders. In relation to the
stipulation of prevailing laws and regulations in Macao, the
Bank has established a modern corporate governance
framework. It is composed of the General Meeting with
Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Committee and the Senior Management. The initial
formation of an authoritative, strategic, and control
mechanism enables management to execute bank
operation in a scientific, effective and efficient manner.

Totally five professional committees have been established
under the Board of Directors, including Strategic
Development and Budget Committee (“SDBC”), Audit
Committee (“AC”), Risk Management and Internal Control
Committee (“RMICC”), Remuneration Management and
Appraisal Committee (“RMAC”) and Credit and
Investment Management Committee (“CIMC”).

Strategic Development and Budget Committee (“SDBC”)
comprises four members, including Chairman, Vice
Chairman and Executive Directors. The SDBC is
responsible for setting strategic development plans for the
Bank.

Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises four members,
including Chairman, Executive Director and Directors. The
AC assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

Risk Management and Internal Control Committee
(“RMICC”) comprises four members, including Executive
Directors and Directors. The RMICC is responsible for
setting risk appetites and tolerances level that match with
the strategic objectives and business plans of the Bank,
which also serve as the guidance of the Bank for the
establishment and development of a comprehensive risk
management system.

Remuneration Management and Appraisal Committee
(“RMAC”) comprises three members of shareholders of the
Bank. The RMAC is responsible for setting remuneration
for members of the Board, Standing Administrative
Committee, Supervisory Committee or single supervisor;
setting appraisal criteria and performing assessments for
Senior Management; analyzing and developing
remuneration policies and plans for Senior Management.

Credit and Investment Management Committee (“CIMC”)
comprises five members, including President and Senior
Management. The CIMC is responsible for the overall
management of businesses related to credit, assets and
other large investments of the Bank, subsidiaries and
branches (including branches in Macao and Mainland).
The Board delegates credit approval authority to the CIMC
and it can further delegate to the subordinates within its
limit authorized by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The functions and duties of the Shareholders’ General
Meeting, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Committee and the Senior Management are clearly
demarcated. The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board
and the Senior Management carry out their stewardship
and fiduciary responsibilities as stipulated in the Articles of
the Bank and the Financial System Act. Given the objective
of achieving operating efficiency and sustainable excellence
in investment return for shareholders, the corporate
governance is constantly enhanced through fortifying risk
management and internal control.

General Meeting of Shareholders

The main function of the General Shareholders’ Meeting
includes election and re-election of Board of Directors and
appointment of Supervisory Committee members. The
Meeting provides a forum for shareholders to vote on
resolutions upon the Board’s requests, including the Bank’s
strategic plan and profits appropriation. The Meeting
needs to vote on special resolutions like increase or
decrease of contributed capital, acquisitions, liquidation
and appointment of auditors. Working reports and revision
of rules of procedures from the Board and Supervisory
Committee are also presented in the shareholders’ meeting.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors serves as a decision-making unit of
the Bank. It carries out the function of monitoring the
operation and management affairs, maximizing
shareholders’ wealth and elevating standards of corporate
governance. At present, there are 12 directors. The Board is
held accountable to the Shareholders' General Meeting.
Besides executing resolutions, the Board also formulates
business plan, develops strategies, approves annual
financial budget and carries out the fiduciary duties.

Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee is a monitoring authority of
the Bank. The Committee has 3 members. It is held
accountable to the General Meeting of shareholders. It has
oversight over financial activities, risk management,
internal control and fulfillment of fiduciary duties of the
Board of Directors and Senior Management.

Senior Management

The Senior Management is responsible for operating
management of the Bank. The senior management
personnel carries out its fiduciary duties in accordance with
the Commercial Code of Macao, regulations, the Articles of
the Bank and the operation rules for the Senior
Management. The Senior Management is empowered by
the Board of Directors to execute authority.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAI FUNG BANK
LIMITED

(incorporated in Macao with limited liability by shares)

The accompanying summary financial statements of Tai
Fung Bank Limited (the “Bank”) set out on pages 12 t0 18,
which comprise the summary statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the summary statement
of profit or loss, the summary statement of
comprehensive income, the summary statement of
changes in equity and the summary statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, are derived from the
audited financial statements of the Bank for the year
ended 31 December 2024. We expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those financial statements, from which
the summary financial statements are derived, in our
report dated 21 March 2025. Those financial statements
and the summary financial statements do not reflect the
effects of events subsequent to the date of our report on
those financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain all
the disclosures required by Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Government of the Macao
Special Administrative Region. Reading the summary
financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for
reading the audited financial statements of the Bank.

Directors’ responsibility for the Summary
Financial Statements

Directors are responsible for the preparation of
summary financial statements in accordance with
Article 85(1) of the Financial System Act of Macao
under Law No. 13/2023.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
summary financial statements based on our
procedures and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standard
on Auditing 810 “Engagements to Report on Summary
Financial Statements”, which is included in the
Auditing Standards.

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAI FUNG BANK
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

(incorporated in Macao with limited liability by shares)

Opinion

In our opinion, the summary financial statements
derived from the audited financial statements of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements, in accordance with Article 85(1)
of the Financial System Act of Macao under Law no.
13/2023.

CHAN Wai Certified Public Accountant
Ernst & Young
Macao, 21 March 2025

11
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net gain from trading and other
investment income
Other operating income

Operating income
Net charge of impairment
allowances of financial assets

Net operating loss

Operating expense

Operating loss

Net loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Share of profits after tax of
associates

Loss before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
7,788,706 8,774,950
(5,816,595) (6,003,911)

1,972,111 2,771,039
293,876 275,846
(59,461) (47,311)
234,415 228,535
623,384 896,054
76,080 179,909
2,905,990 4,075,537
(3,292,825) (4,857,330)
(386,835) (781,793)
(914,582) (815,613)
(1,301,417) (1,597,406)
(90) (20)
67,367 66,188
(1,234,140) (1,531,238)
(162,158) 111,269
(1,396,298) (1,419,969)

12
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
Loss for the year (1,396,298) (1,419,969)
Items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit or loss:
Revaluation on bank premises, net of
tax (156,207) 7,888
Equity instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax 953,541 113,207
797,334 121,095
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to statement of
profit or loss:
Debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax 98,328 356,449
98,328 356,449
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates, net of tax (13,720) 13,167
Currency translation difference (100,197) (33,435)
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 781,745 457,276
Total comprehensive loss for the
year (614,553) (962,693)

13
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Cash and balances with banks

Deposits with AMCM

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial investments

Advances and other accounts

Derivative financial instruments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions

Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit in issue
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Other equity instruments
General regulatory reserve
Specific regulatory reserve
Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

2024

+oA=+—H

31 December

2023
+ZH=+—H

31 December

4,897,554 6,796,427
2,089,849 2,003,539
6,090,409 9,162,090
53,002,041 50,483,380
118,086,120 126,978,371
16,220 52,868
11,000 11,000
464,488 443,321
3,797,253 4,042,910
21,489 22,096

- 92,474

2,686,353 2,473,866
191,162,776 | 202,562,342
19,293,041 38,909,440
142,458,015 | 136,983,196
1,828,888 -
43,255 4,498
1,092,846 853,103
46,571 62,955
103,359 -
3,706,425 2,005,757
168,572,400 | 178,878,949
1,500,000 1,500,000
4,700,000 4,700,000
2,729,500 2,729,500
660,360 2,340,000
3,176,000 1,281,000
5,762,782 5,054,466
4,061,734 6,078,427
22,590,376 23,683,393
191,162,776 | 202,562,342
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At 1 January 2024

Loss for the year

Deficit on revaluation of
premises, net of tax

Financial investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income,
net of tax

Share of other
comprehensive income
of associates, net of tax

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
loss

Release upon
disposal/redemption
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve to
retained earning

Appropriation to
regulatory reserve

2023 dividend paid on
preference shares

2024 interest paid on
capital instrument

At 31 December 2024

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

HAth BT HAth
AR A E TR s s REER 485t
Other
Share Share equity Regulatory Other Retained
capital premium instruments reserves reserves earnings Total
1,500,000 4,700,000 2,729,500 3,621,000 5,054,466 6,078,427 23,683,393
- - - - - (1,396,298) (1,396,298)
- - - - (156,207) - (156,207)
- - - - 1,051,869 - 1,051,869
- - - - (13,720) - (13,720)
- - - - (100,197) - (100,197)
- - - - 781,745 (1,396,298)  (614,553)
- - - - 5,845 (5,845) -
- - - - (79,274) 90,220 10,946
_ - - 215,360 - (215,360) -
- - - - - (325,640)  (325,640)
- - - - - (163,770)  (163,770)
1,500,000 4,700,000 2,729,500 3,836,360 5,762,782 4,061,734 22,590,376
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At 1 January 2023

Loss for the year

Surplus on revaluation
of premises, net of tax

Financial investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income,
net of tax

Share of other
comprehensive income
of associates, net of tax

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
loss

Release upon
disposal/redemption
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve

Appropriation to
regulatory reserve

2022 dividend paid on
ordinary shares

2022 dividend paid on
preference shares

2023 interest paid on
capital instrument

At 31 December 2023

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

A BT FA
ek BeAEE ESTH ik S RE R dEst
Other
Share Share equity Regulatory Other Retained
capital premium instruments reserves reserves earnings Total
1,500,000 4,700,000 2,729,500 830,097 4,662,574 11,065,966 25,488,137
- - - - - (1,419,969) (1,419,969)
- - - - 7,888 - 7,888
- - - - 469,656 - 469,656
- - - - 13,167 - 13,167
- - - - (33,435) - (33,435)
- - - - 457,276 (1,419,969)  (962,693)
_ - - - 13,880 (13,880) -
- - - - (79,264) 90,042 10,778
- - - 2,790,903 - (2,790,903) -
- - - - - (364,309)  (364,309)
- - - - - (324,750)  (324,750)
_ - - - - (163,770)  (163,770)
1,500,000 4,700,000 2,729,500 3,621,000 5,054,466 6,078,427 23,683,393
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Loss before tax

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Distribution of financial instruments

Dividend income from investments in
subsidiaries

Net loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Share of profits after tax of associates

Interest income arising from financial
assets

Interest expense arising from financial
liabilities

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in deposits with
AMCM

Increase in deposits with PBOC

Increase in placements and deposits
with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity
over three months

Decrease/(increase) in derivatives
financial instruments

Decrease in advances and other
accounts

Increase in other assets

Decrease in deposits and balances of
banks and other financial institutions

Increase/(decrease) in deposits from
customers

Increase in other liabilities

Exchange difference

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid
Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash flows used in operating
activities

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
(1,234,140) (1,531,238)
187,493 174,575
3,292,825 4,857,330
(733,900) (768,557)
(70,000) (170,000)

90 20
(67,367) (66,188)
(7,788,706) (8,774,950)
5,816,595 6,003,911
(140,863) 180,927
(38,812) (38,567)
(144,129) (992,292)
75,404 (27,561)
8,524,338 1,066,255
(212, 566) (1,636,472)
(19,404,470) (6,194,466)
5,533,699 (3,621,608)
271,696 98,339
(546,471) (136,558)
(6,679,284) (11,577,100)
(50,384) (84,412)
6,945,244 8,116,373
(8,736,901) (5,294,631)
(8,521,325) (8,839,770)
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

Cash flows from investing
activities

Distribution received from perpetual
bonds

Distribution received from subsidiaries
and associates

Distribution received from stocks and
funds

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of financial investments

Proceeds from sale or redemption of
financial investments

Net cash flows generated
from/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financial
activities

Proceeds from issuance of certificates
of deposit

Payment for redemption of certificates
of deposit

Proceeds from issuance of
subordinated liabilities

Payment for redemption of
subordinated liabilities

Dividends paid

Net cash flows generated from/
(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Exchange differences in respect of cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
99,068 154,024
102,480 202,480
251,470 257,959
(118,886) (77,425)
(12,054,337) (18,489,432)
16,370,438 9,374,468
4,650,233 (8,577,926)
6,455,637 10,355,377
(4,626,818) (14,554,313)
1,651,200 2,060,000
- (1,998,200)
(407,300) (852,820)
3,072,719 (4,989,965)
(798,373) (22,407,661)
20,648,003 43,027,111
(117,671) 28,553
19,731,959 20,648,003
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

1.

General information

Tai Fung Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is a financial
institution incorporated and domiciled in Macao. The
registered office of the Bank is located at Tai Fung Bank
Headquarter Building, 418 Alameda Dr. Carlos
d’Assumpcao, Macau.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking, financial and other related services.

The Bank’s holding company is Bank of China Limited
(“BOC”), a joint stock company with limited liability
incorporated in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Bank has established two branches in the mainland.
The address of the Guangzhou Branch is Room 01-09,
Floor 19, No.181 Yanjiang Xi Road, Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou. The address of the Shanghai Branch is
Room 401-404, 406, 408A, Floor 4, No.23 Zhongshan
Dong Yi Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Bank have been
prepared in both Chinese and English languages. When
there is any discrepancy in interpretation between the
Chinese version and English version of the statements,
the Chinese version shall prevail.

The financial year for the Bank ends on 31 December
(“reporting date”).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the Macau Special Administrative
Region, China, under Administrative Regulation No.
44/2020 on 27 March 2020 (“MFRS”).

The preparation of these financial statements in
conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
note 3.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,
precious metals at fair value, and premises which are
carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

In addition, the Bank has availed itself of the exemption
election from IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” (“IFRS 10”) that permits an entity to
prepare separate financial statements. The Bank is a
partially-owned subsidiary of BOC, a listed bank in
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited which produces
consolidated financial statements available for public
use that comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards. BOC is domiciled in the PRC, with its head
office located at 1 Fuxingmen Nei Dajie, Beijing 100818
PRC. The consolidated financial statements of BOC are
publicly available from this address. All shareholders of
the Bank have been informed and do not object to the
Bank not presenting consolidated financial statements.

Given the above, these financial statements are not
prepared for the purposes of compliance with IFRS 10
included in the MFRS. As a result, the financial
statements do not give all the information required by
IFRS 10 about the economic activities of the group of
which the Bank is the parent. Furthermore, as these
financial statements are prepared in respect of the
Bank’s economic activities only, disclosures required by
IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” in the
MFRS have not been made.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income and expense

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss for financial assets at
amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset (i.e. its amortised
cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortised cost of financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but excluding future credit losses. The
calculation includes all amounts paid or received by the
Bank that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate of a financial instrument, including transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (“Stage 3”7), the interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their
amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
allowance).

Non-interest income and expense

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers. For
those services that are provided over a period of time,
fee and commission income is accrued in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the service agreement.
For other services, fee and commission income is
recognised when the transactions are completed.

Dividend income from financial asset is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Non-interest expenses are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries and associates
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Bank has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Bank controls another entity.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
allowance for impairment losses, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sales). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the right to receive payment is established.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Bank has
significant influence but no control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

The Bank’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of associates is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The accumulated
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
cost of the investment. When the Bank’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Bank does not recognise further losses
unless the Bank has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.3

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries and associates (continued)
Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Bank and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Bank’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss or retained earnings, where appropriate.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank’s operations is
Macao patacas (“MOP”). Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Bank's operations in Mainland
China are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The presentation currency of the
Bank is MOP.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at reporting date
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at
fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of
monetary securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.4

2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income, are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign operation

The functional currency of certain overseas branches
is currency other than MOP. The statement of
financial position of the entity is translated into MOP
at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date
and its statement of profit or loss is translated into
MOP at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the other reserves.

Cash and cash equivalents

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents is presented individually in the statement
of cash flows.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values
are obtained from quoted market prices in active
markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as
assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

All derivatives of the Bank are categorised as held for
trading and changes in their fair value are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss .

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets into one of the
following measurement categories at initial
recognition as subsequently measured at: fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”), amortised cost (“AC”)
and fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCT”). The classification depends on the Bank’s
business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instruments, or the election of fair value option. All
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial assets carried at FVPL, all
transaction costs of financial assets are included in
their initial carrying amounts.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to profit or loss, and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses of such assets are reported in net gain
from trading and other investment income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently
measured at AC if both of the following conditions are
met: (1) the financial assets are held with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows (“hold-to-collect” business model), and (2)
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding on
specified dates.

They are initially recognised at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at AC using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.
Interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium or discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently
measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions
are met: (1) the financial assets are held with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling, and (2) the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding on specified dates.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially recognised at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the financial assets are recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income, until the
financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which
time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the
statement of profit or loss. However, interest income
which includes the amortization of premium and
discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For equity instruments, an irrevocable election can be
made at initial recognition to recognise unrealised and
realised fair value gains or losses in the statement of
comprehensive  income  without  subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the
statement of profit or loss even upon disposal, when it
meets the definition of an equity instrument under IAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32”).

Dividends on equity instruments classified as FVOCI
are recognised in net gain from trading and other
investment income when the Bank’s right to receive
payment is established. Equity instruments designated
at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue, together with
subordinated liabilities and other liabilities, are
carried at AC. Any difference (if available) between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the period using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Repurchase agreements

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an
obligation to repurchase at a pre-determined price on
a specified future date , referred to as “Repos”.

Repos are initially recognised as deposits and balances
of banks and other financial institutions, at the actual
amount of cash received from the counterparty.
Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as
financial investments. The difference between the sale
and the repurchase price is recognised as interest
expense over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn
loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised
as financial liabilities at fair value on the date the
guarantees were given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Bank’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (1) an ECL
provision as set out in note 2.13 and (2) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of
the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in
the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts
are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under
which, over the duration of the commitment, the Bank
is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms
to the customer. These contracts are in the scope of the
ECL requirements as set out in note 2.13.

The ECL provision for financial guarantees and loan

commitments are reported under “Other liabilities” in
the financial statements.

27



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED

MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A B bt
(FRFFRIZERSN » 8B R P T TT)

2.

EAETBOREE (8

Sl T HAVRESS - $XIERERE - SEAMEA

YIARHERE

ASATHH B B T AN — 70
SRTB S R M - LU BT
T{RI S REE » 5 8 FHEATRERR -

& 1EHERR

B < S SR A R E 4L F
W BEs A eREEEEE > AIRTTE
1o B FfT A AT 3R Y 28 1 7 A e B R 2
W > SR A A R Bl
RV 2 P 7 HE 7 B ) 5%~ i T e A i
B - {EEREERZ R A ERITERIR > 4%
IETERRL ISR E 7 -

B o FEPTiEE R RS RERR - B s
R > ASRITEC R HERD S SRl AL -

Ed

B DA R A R LS FU(E B bR A A
R ET AT SR T B S FPE SR
HEMETEEEE - JELUR EIRAAR &
s]REY S FEREAUETHTIR - A BRI
{ERTHYEEER R BREAELES - WAZREKR
ek MR R A R T A o M FE T
e o AR $EIE E ARG IRE SR R TR
YRR I{E EAHRH R R A48 -

B ARSRAT B AR L0 B A E AL P
& > BRI Ul > ASRATRAZ 55
BB o < R R B A I Y Rk
HEfG - AEIIE ASRTT U ERX SR &
i R Bl SEFRURE RS » 5T A E 1
B o

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Recognition, derecognition, modification and
write-off of financial instruments

Initial recognition

The Bank recognises a financial asset or financial
liability in its statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the settlement date.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired,
or when a financial asset is transferred, the Bank has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership, or when the Bank neither transfers nor
retains substantially all risks or rewards of ownership
of the financial asset but has not retained control of the
financial asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished — that is, when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Modification

When the contractual cash flow of financial
instruments measured at AC or FVOCI are
renegotiated or modified, the modified contractual
cash flow should be discounted using the original
effective interest rate, and compared with the original
amortised cost before impairment. If the difference is
material, the original financial instrument should be
derecognised and then re-recognised with the present
value aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is
adjusted to the original carrying value and accounted
for in the profit or loss.

Write off

When the Bank determines that a financial asset has
no reasonable prospect of recovery after the Bank has
taken necessary actions and necessary proceedings,
the financial asset is written off, in whole or in part,
against its allowance for impairment losses. If in a
subsequent period the loan written off is recovered, the
amount recovered will be recognised in profit or loss
captured within impairment losses on financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.12

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices, where available, at the reporting
date without any deduction for estimated future selling
costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of
prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market
rate at the reporting date applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data at the
reporting date.

The Bank’s details of valuation of financial instruments
is depicted in note 6.

Impairment of financial assets

At the reporting date, the Bank assesses and recognises
the relevant impairment allowances for financial assets
measured at AC, debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
account receivables and loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts on the basis of expected
credit losses (“ECL”).

Financial assets measured at FVPL, including units in
debt instruments, funds, equity instruments, equity
instruments classified at FVOCI (non-recycling) and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Bank in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (1)
the contractual cash flows that would be due to the
Bank if the holder/beneficiary of the loan
commitment/financial guarantee draws down/claims
on the loan/financial guarantee, and (2) the cash flows
that the Bank expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down/financial guarantee is claimed.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the
effect of discounting is material. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Bank is exposed to
credit risk. Where the financial instrument such as
revolving credit facilities includes both a drawn and
undrawn commitment, ECL is measured over the
period that the Bank remains exposed to credit risk that
is not mitigated by management actions in respect of
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Bank takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

According to the changes of credit risk of financial
assets since initial recognition, the Bank calculates ECL
by three stages:

— Stage 1: Financial assets without significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition are
included under Stage 1 to calculate their
impairment allowance at an amount equivalent to
the ECL of the financial instruments for the next 12
months;

Stage 2: Financial assets that have had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
have no objective evidence of impairment are
included under Stage 2, with their impairment
allowance measured at an amount equivalent to the
ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments;
Stage 3: Financial assets with objective evidence of
impairment at the reporting date are included
under Stage 3, with their impairment allowance
measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL over
the lifetime of the financial assets.

Where, in the previous accounting period, the
impairment allowance of a financial asset was
measured based on the ECL of the instrument over the
entire lifetime, and while, at the current reporting date,
such financial asset is no longer regarded as
experiencing a significant increase in credit risk since
its initial recognition, the Bank measures the
impairment allowance of the financial asset as at the
reporting date using the ECL of the instrument over the
next 12 months.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank only recognises the cumulative
changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial
recognition at the reporting date as an impairment
allowance. At each reporting date, the Bank recognises
in profit or loss the amount of the change in lifetime
expected credit losses as an impairment gain or loss.

When measuring ECL, an entity need not necessarily
identify every possible scenario. However, the Bank
considers the risk or probability that a credit loss
occurs by reflecting the possibility that a credit loss
occurs and the possibility that no credit loss occurs,
even if the possibility of a credit loss occurring is very
low. The parameters, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring the ECL are disclosed in
note 4.1.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.15

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss. Rental income
from investment properties, and any gain or loss
arising from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight
line method to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives
for investment properties are the same as those for
Bank premises as shown in note 2.16.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise bank
premises and furniture, fixtures and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are recognised initially
at cost. Cost comprises purchase cost, and any directly
attributable costs bringing the assets to the condition
for their intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, bank premises are
carried at fair value, based on valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation and
any impairment losses for bank premises excluding
freehold land portion of bank premises. Valuations are
performed with sufficient regularity with an interval to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not
differ materiality from its carrying amount at the
reporting date.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All furniture, fixtures
and equipment, and motor vehicles are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of bank premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same
asset are debited against revaluation reserve directly in
equity; all other decreases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Each year the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of
the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred from premises revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.
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2, BEAEETBEERE (8) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 FEIE - BEHE (8) 2.16 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
KA CERE Y~ BUN R R HRHEFE Freehold land and leasehold land under private or
JEITES - ITELIEGE  BEREZAE government tenure without limitation of time are not
WEGENEO T EE e FAER N EY depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their costs or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

KA GERE T R B AT Freehold land and Not depreciated
JRFECRA A R HAE A leasehold land under
HE private or government
tenure without
limitation of time
$RfTITHE (ki +-3h fZFH S HiSK A+ Bank premises (other Lesser of period of lease or
FRaM) Fo WEZIREHE than above lands) 50 years
R BEE R AE =24 Furniture, fixtures and 3-20 years
B office equipment
B =F )\ Computer equipment 3-8 years
VRE AENE Motor vehicles 5-6 years
EE 2 FerEEMEATEERNE 48R The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
HE¥Ra > AT E TR - reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.
AR EEE A B T U e EE An asset’s carrying amount is written down
B » HAEA{E RS el E U EE - immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s

carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

2.17 BH&E 2.17 Precious metal
HEEBAUEES RN EMNESE - &8 Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other
J& LA A e EEIaHERE I H AR E L - & precious metals. Precious metals are initially
B ET TS A EEAE S 2 UERE recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair
518 - R RER HM K EUA - value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious

metals are included in other operating income.

2.18 fHE 2.18 Leases
KEtHE Operating leases
AIFH & A R B BE A o T B A [ 3 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
HIFHAPRE » B RECETHE - IRIBEE rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
FHE SRR (F0FR B HH AU Z A classified as operating leases. Payments made under
{AIEFIEIER ) IS AN DU E SR EFIR operating leases (net of any incentives received from
F e SO the lessor) are expensed in the statement of profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

EASRT BT B E 2 HESUA Where the Bank is a lessor, rental income from
FEFHATHAN DL E SR AT F A T HAMAS e operating leases is recognised in “other operating
U A 3 A © income” on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

34



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED

MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A B bt
(FRFFRIZERSN » 8B R P T TT)

2.

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

EAEBOREE (8

HE (&
il T &

GHEWAEEE EHAIRITHAZSE
B BT A R A JE b AR - 5% H
DI RRE S - MEHE R ERGR
A EYISRE & o (8 (E B (R S 3K
HUER(E M B HIERE T IE AL -

BIIEE G S i R AN EE A -
HRERIF S AR PR EE H% > Gat
ARIAEET - EMN KPS EE
P (& 5T BT Y & R4S B DL — [ E
HatE - EHEMN R RER PR -

Rk FEHRSHEA

RESRRENS  Be R SEE A
5 FR ORI (5 BT = (1 P B K
T EH A ~ ST R E A R
BORES - Hoft & B g Rkt -

it35)

AR B R R BUE Rk 2 B EE
MR REER RS - WA EEGER HIF
TSR Ry R AR -

BE

EARIRITA R E A 2 AT AURIE X
M E M 2 IRA B T AA RS
RSB AHRR 0 - TR LR A TR
HREZER - RAER (LB ERES 1] SEHh(F
S B IE LI F R - ARIRIAR 2 &€
ERARA TR TR -

WA AL HREAEE A o
BIRH AR - IR R R R Ae S
& - BEEAE R — =R A e S R —
11875 E AR BR B RUAT Y AT RE PR > {75
RNERR IR -

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Finance leases

Leases where the Bank has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other liabilities. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the statement of profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition
including cash, balances with banks and other
financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills
and certificates of deposits.

Dividends

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting
date are disclosed as a post reporting date event and
not recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefit

Retirement scheme obligations

The Bank operates a defined contribution plan.
Retirement benefit costs are charged to the statement
of profit or loss when the contributions fall due. The
defined contribution plan requires members of the
plan to contribute 5% of their basic salary while the
Bank to contribute 5% or 10% of the member’s salary
depending on the number of years of service of the
employee concerned. The Bank’s contributions to the
defined contribution plan are charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period to which they relate.
Contributions made under the defined contribution
plan after 1 January 2003, the effective date of Macau
Decree Law 6/99/M which sets out certain
requirements of retirement schemes, together with
part of the contributions made before this date, are
held separately in independently administered funds.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as
a liability when the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Short-term obligations

Salaries, annual bonuses and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrued by employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Current and deferred income taxes

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date where the Bank operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. The tax effects of income tax losses
available for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Bank and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an
individual entity basis when there is a legal right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relates to the same
authority.
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2.

2.24

2.25

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
deferred taxes

Current and income

(continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Fiduciary activities

The Bank commonly acts as a trustee, or in other
fiduciary capacities, that result in its holding or
managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and
other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses
arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Bank.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Bank if that party (1)
controls, jointly controls or has significant influence
over the Bank; (2) is a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as the holding company,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (3) is an associate
or a joint venture of the Bank or reporting group of the
holding company; (4) is a key management personnel
of the Bank or the holding company; (5) is subject to
common control with the Bank; (6) is an entity in
which a person identified in (4) controls; and (7)
provides key management personnel services to the
Bank or the holding company. Related parties may be
individuals or entities.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower
of their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the statement of financial position.
Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the
lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and
are reported as “Repossessed assets” included in
“Other assets”.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Pursuant to Article 7(1) of Law No. 20/2020,
Regulations on the Profession and Practice of
Accountants, the Accounting Standards of the Macao
Special Administrative Region (hereinafter referred to
as the “New Macao Financial Reporting Standards”),
was promulgated by the Professional Committee of
Accountants on 19 December 2024 under Notice No.
2/2024/CPC. The New Macao Financial Reporting
Standards shall be mandatorily applied to the
preparation of financial statements for the financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2028. Early
adoption of the New Macao Financial Reporting
Standards is permitted for the financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2026

The Bank has not applied the New Macao Financial
Reporting Standards, which has been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements. The
Company intends to apply the New Macao Financial
Reporting Standards when they become effective.

The Bank has not commenced an assessment of the
impact of the New Macao Financial Reporting
Standards and therefore is not yet in a position to state
whether the New Macao Financial Reporting
Standards would have a significant impact on its
results of operations and financial position.
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3.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
in applying accounting policies

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Areas
susceptible to changes in essential estimates and
judgements, which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, are set out below. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments
to the estimates referred to below.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank reviews its credit portfolios to assess
impairment at least on a quarterly basis. Under IFRS
9, the measurement of impairment losses across all
categories of financial asset requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes of which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex
models. The choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies involves a series of assumptions.
ECL models are developed by leveraging on the
parameters implemented Internal Ratings-Based
models and internal models, where feasible and
available. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates
include:

— The Bank’s internal credit rating models, which
assign Probability of Defaults to the individual
ratings ;

— The Bank’s determination criteria for significant
increase in credit risk ;

— The segmentation of financial assets according to
credit risk characteristics (portfolios including
Corporates, and Retail Small Medium-sized
Enterprise) when their ECLs are assessed on a
collective basis ;
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3.

3.2

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
in applying accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include
(continued):

— Development of ECL models, including the
determination of macroeconomic factor forecasts
and the effect on Probability of Defaults, Loss
Given Defaults and Exposure at Defaults; and

— Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios (including three independent scenarios
i.e. good, baseline and bad) and their probability
weightings.

In respect of credit-impaired exposures, expected
credit losses are measured on an individual basis by
estimating the future recoverable cash flows. Factors
affecting this estimate include, among other things,
the granularity of financial information related to
specific borrowers and their guarantors, the
availability of meaningful information of competitors
and the relevance of sector trends to the future
performance of specific borrowers and cash flows from
the sale of collateral.

It has been the Bank’s policy to regularly review its
models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank’s accounting policy for valuation of financial
instruments is included in note 6. The fair value of the
financial instruments is mainly based on the quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price
quoted from a broker/dealer for non-exchanged
traded financial instruments. The fair value of
financial instruments that are not quoted in active
market are determined using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow
analysis, option pricing model and various market
recognised pricing models. To the extent practical, the
models use observable data. In addition, valuation
adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit
risk are not considered in the valuation models.
Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modelling techniques.
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3.

33

3-4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
in applying accounting policies (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Bank periodically reviews estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land under private or government tenure
without limitation of time are not depreciated in
consideration of expected useful lives, based on
management's assessment of land regimes in Macau
SAR and its enforcement.

Taxes

The Bank is subject to income, value-added and other
taxes in numerous jurisdictions, principally in
mainland China. During the ordinary course of
business, there are certain transactions and activities
for which the final tax treatment is uncertain. The
Bank takes into account the existing tax legislations
and past practice in determining the tax estimates.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
estimated, such differences will impact the current
income tax, deferred income tax, and value-added tax
in the period during which such a determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be recognised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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4.

Financial risk management

The Bank is exposed to financial risks as a result of
engaging in a variety of business activities. The principal
financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
This note summarises the Bank’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management
governance structure, policies and processes for
managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Bank’s risk management governance structure is
designed to cover all business processes and to ensure
various risks are properly managed and controlled in
the course of conducting business. The Bank has
established a robust risk management organisational
structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures in accordance with the current regulatory
requirements in Macau and the bank’s actual
circumstances, to identify, measure, monitor and
control various risks that may arise. These risk
management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and
business strategies. Various groups of risk takers
assume their respective responsibilities for risk
management.

The Board of Directors (“the Board”), representing the
interests of shareholders, is the highest decision-
making authority of the Bank and has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the
assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management
strategies, risk appetite and risk culture and ensuring
that the Bank has an effective risk management system
to implement these strategies.

The Board authorises its subordinate Strategic
Development and Budget Committee (“SDBC”) , Risk
Management and Internal Control Committee
(“RMICC”) and Audit Committee (“AC”) to perform
relevant responsibilities of comprehensive risk
management. SDBC is responsible for setting strategic
development plans of the Bank; RMICC is responsible
for setting risk appetites and tolerances level that match
with the strategic objectives and business plans of the
Bank, which also serve as the guidance of the Bank for
the establishment and development of a comprehensive
risk management system; The AC assists the Board in
fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control
system.
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4.

Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The senior management is responsible for managing the
Bank’s various types of risks and implementing
resolutions of the Board. Various units of the Bank have
their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence, while Risk
Management Department (“RM”), Finance Department
(“FN”), Treasury Department (“TD”), and other relevant
functional departments are responsible for managing
financial risks. Internal Audit Department (“AD”)
conducts independent reviews on financial risk
management, including the design and implementation
of internal control procedures, and supervising relevant
rectification.

The Bank has put in place appropriate internal control
systems, including the establishment of an organisation
structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also
provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation
of duties throughout the organisation which helps to
promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Credit risk
Overview

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or
counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet its
contractual obligations.

Credit risk of the Bank arise principally from the
exposures on the portfolio of corporate, small business
and retail customer , which mainly includes placements
with banks and other financial institutions,
government-related claims, certificates of deposit, loans
and other accounts (including loan commitments and
guarantees), securities investment and other assets, etc.

Credit risk management framework

The Bank has formulated a comprehensive set of credit
risk management policies and procedures, and
appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control
credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures
and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business
strategies.
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4.

4.1

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Bank’s organisation structure establishes a clear set
of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

Various units of the Bank have their respective credit
risk management responsibilities. Business units act as
the first line of defence in risk management. RM, which
is independent from the business units, is responsible
for the day-to-day management of credit risks and
provides an independent due diligence through
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as
well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk
management policies and procedures. It is also
responsible for the design, development and
maintenance of the Bank’s internal rating system and
ensures the system complies with the relevant
regulatory requirements. Back offices are responsible
for credit administration, providing operations support
and supervision on the implementation of prerequisite
terms and conditions of credit facilities.

The Board delegates credit approval authority to the
Credit and Investment Management Committee
(“CIMC”). The CIMC can further delegate to the
subordinates within its limit authorised by the Board.
The Bank sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level
of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the
Bank has been continuously revisiting its -credit
strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the
concerned portfolios.

(1) Loans and advances to customers (including loan
commitments and guarantees)

The Bank employs an Internal Rating Based (IRB)
model that can be mapped to Moody’s external
credit ratings to reflect its assessment of the
probability of default of individual counterparties.

In addition, the Bank identifies credit concentration
risk by industry, geography, customer or
counterparty. The Bank monitors changes to every
counterparties credit risk, quality of the credit
portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports
regularly to the Bank’s Management.
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4. sREREE @ 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EREE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

[5G Tt R B (48) Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

(1) B EFMRRX (BT ETRE B (1) Loans and advances to customers (including loan
HELR) (48) commitments and guarantees) (continued)
RERTTIRIE & I EHIst L BB The Bank determines loan grading criteria based on
MESK (5T 4851, ) B EFFI#EK the requirements for the establishment of regulatory
WEE - 558 KR TEBAEREAE reserves (the “Guideline”) issued by AMCM, which
KB R LUN TR 2 TR5 ~ B ~ &R requires commercial banks to classify their
aIEEAIIELE (T ARIE ) o Hodh gk corporate and personal loans into five categories:
T EEFEAEHET W H AN BEEM - K pass, special-mention, substandard, doubtful and
SRITSE 55 1 BN E R O~ R0 loss (“The five- category classifications”), among
SETS T TEAE A R b 47 2E o which loans classified in the substandard , doubtful

and loss categories are regarded as non-performing
loans. Loan commitments and guarantees with
credit exposure are also assessed and categorised
with reference to the Guideline.

AN EE TR B - The five-category classifications are defined as
follows:

g B AEEHETESE @ A EH Pass: loans for which borrowers can honour the

BRSO BN RE s R R - terms of the contracts, and there is no reason to

doubt their ability to repay the principal and interest
of loans in full and on a timely basis.

B EREERABHRIAREIEESR Special-mention: loans for which borrowers are still
B - B — e TR AR A able to service the loans currently, although the
HENHRE - repayment of loans might be adversely affected by
some factors.
AR AR AL ) R BB R Substandard: loans for which borrowers’ ability to
TEEKRFEHIER 2E AL R HHEER service loans is apparently in question and
ERAE > B TIERR > thelREgiE borrowers cannot depend on their normal business
R—EEE - revenues to pay back the principal and interest of

loans. Certain losses might be incurred by the Bank
even when guarantees are executed.

ATRE ¢ R IA R BHEBERAR Doubtful: loans for which borrowers cannot pay
BIfESITIELR LB B S R A E ks - back the principal and interest of loans in full and

significant losses will be incurred by the Bank even
when guarantees are executed.

{8 ¢ FERHET A R REHE B — Y 0h Loss: principal and interest of loans cannot be
BABIE T Z 1% AR A (E] - recovered or only a small portion can be recovered
B H AR B DER {7 o after taking all possible measures and resorting to
necessary legal procedures.
R T RIS T IR B B BORE T AL The Bank strictly follows the regulatory
B ITEREE P& E - IBES requirements in five-category loan classifications
IR HA A RE R B G E BN E management, and makes adjustments to these
BUETTHIRERE - classifications as necessary according to customers’

operational and financial position, together with
other factors that may affect the repayment of the
loans.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

(1) Loans and advances to customers (including loan

FELR) ()

RITEBFHE P EHOE T —E
TERIER R E P S - MBEEN
HRFOEITEIRGRE - ARITIRIBEF
FEERENEN - BN EE PR
ROELTEDHIAGE - (AT R AR
BEEEIRGT -

(2) IR AR BERTT [FIZEH

BN ERAFBER TRISE » ARTTEH
e [FISERUE ~ IR K MR (5
Jee\ iz 5 4R 45 SR e OE [R] S 2 P Y (5 AR
e EBFEPES R EEEE S
FrEACEAE ) bR B RE T HY S NI A
FIETEGE TR E T - IEREUHE
MEEAE R -

(3) Az TR TR

BN EE T RIS > ARTTEEMER
1 NEPARERI NN E R R PR S SE 2 P B
s T NE RS - LUEEIEERIE
PR o B OTERES - AR TERA
& IRER R PR LS — B S
PR B R (S RS - A e R
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AN DUSEE 15 o B0 A 1 o 20 e B

b -

commitments and guarantees) (continued)

The Bank performs centralised review on customer
credit ratings on an annual basis in addition to
making adjustments as necessary according to the
customers’ operational and financial condition. The
Bank conducts back-testing of the rating model for
corporate customers, according to the customers’
actual defaults each year, so that the model
calculation results are closer to the objective facts.

(2) Due from, placements with banks and other

financial institutions

The Bank manages the credit quality of due from,
placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions considering the size, financial
position and the internal and external credit rating
of banks and financial institutions. During the
business lifetime, the Bank conducts comprehensive
analysis, monitors and manages internal and
external factors that may affect banks and financial
institutions’ ability to operate on on-going basis and
capacity to bear risk, and takes corresponding
control measures.

(3) Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt instruments, the obligor
ratings or external credit ratings and credit limits
setting on customer/security issuer basis are used
for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Bank sets customer
limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows
the same approval and control processes as applied
for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

For derivative investment, the Bank has established
policies to manage the net open derivative positions
by amounts and by maturity dates. Credit risk
exposures for derivatives are included as part of the
aggregated credit risk limit management for
financial institutions and customers. Collaterals or
other pledges of assets are not typically sought for
these exposures.
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4.

4.1

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Financial instruments are default when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows have occurred such as past due for
more than 9o days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in
full for the credit obligations to the Bank.

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is
introduced in compliance with IFRS 9, it requires the
recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at AC
and FVOCI. Under IFRS 9, ECL is assessed in three
stages and the financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantees are classified in one of the three
stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instruments are not credit-
impaired during origination and their credit risk has not
increased significantly since origination, and the
impairment allowance is measured at an amount up to
12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instruments are not credit-
impaired during origination but their credit risk has
increased significantly since origination, and the
impairment allowance is measured at an amount equal
to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instruments are credit-impaired
and their future cash flows of that financial instruments
are adversely affected by one or more events, and the
impairment allowance is also measured at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL.

The Bank has established the significant credit
deterioration criteria framework to determine the stage
of the financial instrument. The framework
incorporates both quantitative and qualitative
assessment, taking into account of factors such as
number of days past due, change in IRB rating, low
credit risk threshold and the watchlist.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The quantitative and qualitative criteria considered in
determining significant credit deterioration include:

Quantitative criteria

Failure to make payments of principal or interest 30
days after the contractual due dates;

At the reporting date, the credit risk is deemed to
increase significantly when the remaining lifetime
PD rises by more than a certain range from initial
recognition, reflected as drop in credit rating by
corresponding level according to the different PD at
initial recognition. In majority cases, there is a
significant increase in credit risk when the
customer’s credit rating drops more than 2 grades.

Qualitative criteria

Significant adverse change in debtor’s operations or
financial status;

Customers with sign of credit deterioration are put
into watchlist for staging review.

Credit-impaired financial instruments are classified as
Stage 3 and lifetime expected credit losses will be
recognised. Evidence that a financial instrument is
credit-impaired include observable data about the
following events:

Significant financial difficulty incurred by the
borrower;

A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in principal or interest payment;

For economic or contractual reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Bank has granted
to the borrower a concession that it would not
otherwise consider;

Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or
undergo other financial reorganisation; or

Other observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from such financial instruments.
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4.

4.1

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Bank leverages the parameters implemented
Internal Ratings models and internal models where
feasible and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios
without models, all other reasonable and supportable
information such as historical information, relevant loss
experience or proxies are utilised. The measurement of
ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”)
and exposure at default (“EAD”) discounted at the
effective interest rate to the reporting date.

ECL involves segmentation of exposures on the basis of
shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures
within a group are homogeneous. In performing this
segmentation, there must be sufficient information for
the segmentation to be statistically credible. In
particular, the Bank uses credit ratings, product types,
client types, etc., for grouping personal loans and
advances to calculate the losses measured on a collective
basis.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Bank adopts three economic
scenarios in the ECL measurement to meet the
requirements of IFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two
scenarios, referred to as “Good” scenario and “Bad”
scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more
optimistic or more pessimistic compared to Baseline
scenario.

The Baseline scenario is managed by RM. Historical
data, economic trend, external forecast from
governmental and non-governmental organisation, etc.
are also used as benchmarks to ensure the scenario is
reasonable and supportable. For the Good and Bad
scenarios, the Bank makes reference to the historical
macroeconomics data.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The macroeconomic factors in the major countries
/regions the Bank operates such as Gross Domestic
Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Total
Investment, Property Price Index and Unemployment
Rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These
macroeconomic factors are considered to be important
to the Bank’s in statistical analysis and business
opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the
Bank’s view for the economic environment, which
implements the Bank’s prudent and consistent credit
strategy of ensuring the adequacy of impairment
allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Baseline scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and
a lower probability is assigned to the Good and Bad
scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. As of
December of 2024, the probability weight of the Bank’s
Baseline scenario is equal to the sum of probability
weight of Good and Bad scenarios (2023 : the probability
weight of the Bank’s Baseline scenario is equal to the
sum of probability weight of Good and Bad scenarios).

The calculation of ECL is affected by macroeconomic
factors and economic scenarios. If more pessimistic
macroeconomic factors are applied in ECL assessment
or a higher probability is assigned to the Bad scenario, it
would resulted in an increase in ECL. The Bank reviews
the macroeconomic factors used in the ECL model and
the probability weight of economic scenarios on an
annual basis according to the established mechanism.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank conducts sensitivity
analysis on the weightings of multiple economic
scenarios used in the ECL model, the ECL will be
increased by approximately 8.37% (2023: 0.84%) if 5%
of the probability weight is shifted from Baseline
scenario to Bad scenario; and will be decreased by
approximately 1.01% (2023: 0.54%) if 5% of the
probability weight is shifted from Baseline scenario to
Good scenario. For stage 3 ECL, as the credit factors of
such specific borrower are more sensitive than the
scenario weightings used in the analysis, we excluded
stage 3 exposures from the analysis.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4.

4.1

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

CIMC is responsible for reviewing the reasonableness
and reliability of the ECL model, and approving the
change of significant judgements and assumptions of
the ECL model ; RM is responsible for the ECL model
implementation and the maintenance of ECL
methodology including models review and parameters
update on a regular basis. If there is any change in ECL
methodology, the Bank will follow the proper approval
process.

Collateral held as credit
enhancements

security _and _other

The valuation and management of collateral have been
documented in the credit risk management policies and
procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation
and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a
regular basis, though the frequency and the method
used varies with the type of collateral involved and the
nature and the risk of the underlying credit. Collateral is
insured with the Bank as the primary beneficiary. In the
personal sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate, cash deposits and securities. In the commercial
and industrial sector, the types of collateral include real
estate, securities, and cash deposits, etc.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Bank will

assess the guarantor’s financial condition, credit history
and ability to meet obligations.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit enhancements

(1) Financial instruments subject to impairment

2024 2023
RANEEEBHEBENEHERE  Credit risk exposures relating to on-
OaF : balance sheet financial assets are as
follows:
I ACIES Cash and balances with banks 4,041,205 5,849,637
IR R E H S Deposits with AMCM 2,089,849 2,003,539
YrRRTT R At S Bl Placements with banks and other financial 6,090,520 9,162,204
institutions
LREE Financial investments 45,301,856 40,929,603
B EATETE Advances and other accounts 123,736,173 | 130,569,318
Hir&EE Other assets 577,124 611,781
INEF Subtotal 181,836,727 | 189,126,082
RIINEETEEAMEHERE Credit risk exposures relating to off-
O40°F - balance sheet items are as follows:
BRI Letters of guarantee issued 1,726,656 2,634,992
EFUREEFIH A &S Loan commitments and other -credit 16,626,109 17,665,324
commitments
INEF Subtotal 18,352,765 20,300,316
4E=t Total 200,189,492 | 209,426,398

(2) R&y A JBE P e E ARt T 5

A LI e E{ERT & H S EH AER
ZEETE  IRHSMEREREBRAE
FHEB&ERLC - BETAESRM T E » f&K
{5 AR 1 By 1Pt 16,220 F9T (Z
TSR L JRFTIT 52,868 L) ©
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09)

(2) Financial instrument not subject to impairment

The carrying amount of debt instruments measured
at FVPL best represents the maximum exposure to
credit risk. While for derivative financial
instruments, the maximum credit exposures is MOP
16,220 thousands (2023: MOP 52,868 thousands).

Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario
of exposure to the Bank without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-
balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of
guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk
is the maximum amount that the Bank could be required
to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of
the committed facilities.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposures (continued)

The nature of the collateral held and other credit
enhancements and their financial effect to the different
classes of the Bank’s financial assets are as follows:

(1) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions: these exposures are
generally considered to be low risk due to the
nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

(2) Financial assets and debt instruments measured at
fair value through profit or loss: collateral is
generally not sought on debt instruments.

(3) Derivative financial instruments : the Bank further
restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering
into master netting arrangements with
counterparties. Master netting arrangements do
not generally result in the offsetting of assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk associated with
favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting
arrangement to the extent that if a default or other
termination event occurs, all amounts with the
customer under the master netting arrangement
are terminated and settled on a net basis.

(4) Advances and other accounts, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts: The general
types of collateral are disclosed on page 53.
Advances and other accounts, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate
by the Bank taking account of the risk assessment
of individual exposures. The components and
nature of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts are disclosed in note 8.
Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice,
the Bank would assess the necessity to withdraw
the credit line in case where the credit quality of a
borrower deteriorates.
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Advances and other accounts

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

HE HL R (B 2 i SRR R At BRI %
eVl R

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment
allowances are summarised by product type as follows:

2024 2023

HEE Advances to customers
JNH] Corporate 89,101,033 96,097,504
- PEEEEX — Commercial loans 87,132,322 94,637,063
- Y& — Trade Finance 1,968,711 1,460,441
EPN Personal 34,635,140 34,471,814
- {5 - Mortgages 30,772,964 28,957,521
- HAth — Others 3,862,176 5,514,293
123,736,173 130,569,318

AR N 2 B30 B AR SRA R Ed
S R ATARAE > RIS EEHERR » ZHEI 7y
SRR G0 S H T — o s E A
FAsARAERE - A5 IE R - ZAEE S
ZERCE BRI SRR R AT > (BAEK
ARG R SE— B AR E
R HEAEEGRIRER - TSI E -

B 2RI ENR > AIEYE R =
PEEL - IRARDNEEUREIRR -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified
as overdue when the principal or interest is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an
instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable on demand are classified as
overdue either when a demand for repayment has been
served on the borrower but repayment has not been
made in accordance with the instruction or when the
advances have remained continuously to exceed the
approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result

in impairment loss where the advances are fully
collateralised.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(IT) Advances and other accounts (continued)
Gross advances and other accounts before impairment
allowances are analysed by the five-category
classifications and stage determination as follows:

2024
P — e — = 4
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ZPEEE Advances to customers
=% Pass 92,937,272 815,432 - 93,752,704
oz Special Mention - 9,590,075 - 9,590,075
R Substandard - - 9,969,286 9,969,286
o] 5% Doubtful - - 2,858,821 2,858,821
Ei=US Loss - - 7,565,287 7,565,287
92,937,272 10,405,507 20,393,394 123,736,173
Hi e Of which,
BB ZERS impairment allowances (305,145) (379,674) (4,965,234) (5,650,053)
02,632,127 10,025,833 15,428,160 118,086,120
2023
PEEE— PEEE— FEEE= et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ZPEEE Advances to customers
=% Pass 102,067,979 3,507,900 - 105,575,879
BEE Special Mention - 13,758,329 - 13,758,329
Rak Substandard - - 7,325,526 7,325,526
H[5E Doubtful - - 1,967,679 1,967,679
Ei=US Loss - - 1,941,905 1,941,905
102,067,979 17,266,229 11,235,110 130,569,318
Hi e Of which,
BB ZES impairment allowances (376,993) (495,814) (2,718,140) (3,590,947)
101,690,986 16,770,415 8,516,970 126,978,371
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(II) Advances and other accounts (continued)
Reconciliation of impairment allowances and gross

SEAIRANR ¢ amount for advances and other accounts is as follows:
2024
P& EY— PR — FEER = HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
4ExE Gross amount
»—H—H At 1 January 102,067,979 17,266,229 11,235,110 130,569,318
B — S Transfer out from Stage 1 (6,583,095) 4,511,883 1,714,814 (356,398)
HE LS TR ER Transfer out from Stage 2 485,325 (5,959,044) 5,405,744 (67,975)
A = FEES Transfer out from Stage 3 - - - -
S GrimbE e Net change in exposures® (2,258,318) (4,766,561) 2,608,908 (4,325,971)
Hss /U Bl s Write-offs/Recoveries - - (1,224,281) (1,224,281)
[EE SR Ry Ky EAth Exchange differences and
other (774,619) (647,000) 563,099  (858,520)
P+H=ZA=+—H At 31 December 92,937,272 10,405,507 20,393,394 123,736,173
2023
PEEE— PEEE— PEER= Hazt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
4ExE Gross amount
»—H—H At 1 January 110,901,609 17,996,133 5,593,556 134,491,298
B — S Transfer out from Stage 1 (11,873,649) 9,199,496 2,541,272 (132,881)
HE LS TR ER Transfer out from Stage 2 1,024,137 (7,111,372) 6,005,949 (81,286)
A = FEES Transfer out from Stage 3 - 42,535 (51,127) (8,592)
S GrimbE e Net change in exposures(® 2,093,420  (2,854,838) 173,884  (587,534)
i Write-offs - - (3,035,566) (3,035,566)
PR SRy Ky HoAh, Exchange differences and
other (77,538) (5,725) 7,142 (76,121)
Wt —_H=+—H At 31 December 102,067,979 17,266,229 11,235,110 130,569,318
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(II) Advances and other accounts (continued)

SRR HoAth BRI 2 BB S SR B B 1

SR T ()

AR AER
BR—HA—H

W PRE
WS PRE
WS = PRE
AR /HE

67
P+=ZH=+—H

TR AER
R—HA—H

W PRE
WS PRE
W = PRE
AR/ HE

67
P+=ZH=+—H

BiFaE

Impairment allowances

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1

Transfer out from Stage 2

Transfer out from Stage 3

Net (reversal)/charge for
the year®

Write-offs

At 31 December

Impairment allowances

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1

Transfer out from Stage 2

Transfer out from Stage 3

Net (reversal)/charge for
the year®

Write-offs

At 31 December

(1) ARFEERE CUFE L RIFFE D / B e i 5%
ESZ/E‘E%%\ KA PEREREREER - &

SRR EE

(2) MEZEZUESZA=+—H

BB -

— R P&

2 IRAE A RPTIT 169,159,671 %m (===

=4

BFITT 172,152,650 L) ©

Reconciliation of impairment allowances and gross
amount for advances and other accounts is as follows

(continued):
2024
P e — PEER— PEER = 4
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
376,993 495,814 2,718,140 3,590,947
(31,341) 100,686 264,186 333,531
316 (215,784) 934,672 719,204
(40,823) (1,042) 2,272,517 2,230,652
- - (1,224,281) (1,224,281)
305,145 379,674 4,965,234 5,650,053
2023
PEEL— PR ER— PEER = e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
470,330 945,545 1,541,774 2,957,649
(68,339) 183,273 350,919 465,853
2,548 (449,544) 2,459,683 2,012,687
- 22,768 (27,943) (5,175)
(27,546) (206,228) 1,429,273 1,195,499
- - (3,035,566) (3,035,566)
376,993 495,814 2,718,140 3,590,947
Notes:

(1) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises the
impairment losses attributable to new/repaid
loans, remaining loans without stage transfers, and
changes to risk parameters, etc.

(2) As at 31 December 2024, the collateral value of
loans in Stage 1 and 2 is MOP 169,159,671
thousands (2023: MOP 172,152,650 thousands).

58



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED
MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A B bt
(FRFFRIZERISN » BB (g R P TT)

4. SREREER &
41 SHERE (&
(1D ERHEAMHRIE (6)

(A) JREEK
RRE T BERE 2 & P &Rl T

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(IT) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(A) Impaired advances

Classified or impaired advances to customers are
analysed as follows:

2024 2023
FiE s e E 2 & F Gross classified or impaired
B advances to customers 20,393,394 11,235,110
(5% P& 48%EE e Percentage of gross advances to
customers 16.48% 8.60%
st S EEH > BE#  Impairment allowances made in
# respect of such advances 4,965,234 2,718,140

R E B ERE < & P ERUE R A
SRATEE B T AR - T ATRE
s Rk BRSO R S =R R &

s
A °©

B B Bl B R S

Classified or impaired advances to customers
represent advances which are either classified
“substandard” ,“doubtful” or “loss” under the
Bank’s classification of loan quality, or classified
as Stage 3.

The impairment allowances were made after

fH - taking into account the value of collateral in
respect of the credit-impaired advances.
2024 2023
gt A LAY Current market value of collateral
EMEERE > %7 held against the covered portion
S AR A of classified or impaired
advances to customers 21,505,531 9,132,177
Pt AR EE 2 E  Covered portion of classified or
SFEERE R P EER impaired advances to customers 15,151,952 6,338,418
FBiogEIRIFSLEZ 2% Uncovered portion of classified or
EHENBEE FER impaired advances to customers 5,241,442 4,896,692

AEWEL A= 4A
AL 545 SIS IR RS i
METK (CFE = D) -

As at 31 December 2024, there were no impaired
trade bills and advances to banks and other
financial institutions (2023: Nil).
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(IT) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(B) Advances overdue for more than 3 months
The gross amount of advances overdue for more

than 3 months is analysed as follows:

2024 2023
hEFE (=9
REEEHE FREEEHE
X paNes x| palss
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
ZEEHAEEE - £ Gross advances to
EHA - customers which hav
been overdue for:
— = {E A {E -6 months or less
7S E H but over 3
months 3,702,779 2.99% 1,108,069 0.85%
—EE N B A — 1year or less but
Rigm—i over 6 months 6,531,584 5.28% 1,712,896 1.31%
—HiE—F — over 1 year 5,485,196 4.43% 1,937,961 1.48%
gzt Total 15,719,559 12.70% 4,758,926 3.64%
Pt EER{EH >  Impairment allowance:
KB HE S made in respect of
such advances
- B=IRER —Stage 3 4,161,224 1,037,969
BEEM S Dl R IR - The impairment allowances were made after

taking into account the value of collateral in
respect of the credit-impaired advances.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts (continued)

(B) Advances overdue for more than 3 months
(continued)
The gross amount of advances overdue for more

) - than 3 months is analysed as follows (continued):
2024 2023
gt Fut FIR M RE R Current market value of collateral
THEE P ER K held against the covered portion
fmri{E of impaired advances to
customers 15,623,671 3,763,838
Pt ERMFLEZ 2 Covered portion of impaired
HEPE advances to customers 10,653,140 2,979,832
a2 A A2 Uncovered portion of impaired
B R F B advances to customers 5,066,419 1,779,094

B SR ERE SR o
FRATEIRE FYE T HIRE FE R A5
RAETHET ~ [HAREFHE MIEE
1 -

ANEBETIUEF_H=Z4—H 8 FE
AR = (E B 2 B B2 SRT T R HA
CRMERER (CE = ) -

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is
principally represented by charges over business
assets such as commercial, and residential
premises for corporate loans and mortgages over
residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2024, there were no trade bills
and advances to banks and other financial
institutions overdue for more than 3 months
(2023: Nil).
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(€))

(1D SR AR (8)
(O FREETE

() TS E P SRR

LUNRBARY & = BB Z AT 0y
it HATSE U2 AR SRR
KB e R R T 4R -

S
i

NEEE
g

T

4

PRUB 3R
BUE T3

CVARERY 1
NSV ZIN
e QN

F TR
i R=E
EH5
A~ BE
BB IE R
HRATTE
EL T
&)

R E
LS

BEH

HERHL

HAthf73%0
(EPN= e/

Corporate loan and
advances
Agriculture and
fisheries
Mining industries
Manufacturing
industries
Electricity, gas and
water
Construction and
public works
Wholesale and
retail trade
Restaurants, hotels
and similar

Transport,
warehouse and
communications

Non-monetary
financial
institutions

Education

Information
technology

Other industries®

Personal loans

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(IT) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(C) Concentration of advances to customers
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
The following analysis of the gross advances to
customers by industry sector is based on the
categories with reference to the completion
instructions for the AMCM return of loans and

advances.
2024
hEFE AR A A AE —
FEPER AR E FEDE ZEHZ RdEdER — ol
HaEd otk BURE E /4 FE=PEEE PR
% of gross Overdue
Gross advances Classified  for more Impairment Impairment
advances to to or than3 allowances allowances —
customers customers impaired months — Stage 3 Stages1and 2
125,600 0.10% - - - 63
438,267 0.36% - - - 286
7,063,316 5.71% 127,638 127,638 56,383 67,860
3,609,399 2.92% - - - 3,810
6,272,897 5.07% 365,910 365,910 50,022 21,222
8,945,847 7.23% 418,643 415,713 232,047 40,645
1,018,476 0.82% 57,071 4,343 19,847 6,007
2,260,571 1.83% 53,407 - 18,381 2,031
11,449,688 9.25% 87,212 - 883 20,479
265,066 0.21% - - - 169
348,300 0.28% - - - 286
47,302,706 38.23% 18,547,122 14,083,386 4,377,548 456,350
34,635,140 27.99% 736,391 722,569 210,123 64,711
123,736,173  100.00% 20,393,394 15,719,559 4,965,234 684,819
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4. SRUEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EHERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D EEkHEAIRE (48) (II) Advances and other accounts (continued)

O FFEFEFE (&) (C) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
() EATESPBEZE SR (E) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(continued)

DTN E s (T390 The following analysis of the gross advances to
ST BT TS I8 RS customers by industry sector is based on the
R 2 E R IE RS R 4R categories with reference to the completion
Bl (48) - instructions for the AMCM return of loans and

advances (continued).

2023
(EE=9=k=i A TRAEZEMH —
BPEEH FEEE FeEo® ZEHZ REEE- E—
| o7tk BRE ik PR 5 FREY
% of gross Overdue
Gross advances Classified for more Impairment Impairment
advances to to or thang allowances allowances —
customers customers impaired months — Stage 3 Stages1and 2
ANEEEM Corporate loan
X and advances
MR Agriculture and 457,821 0.35% - - - 580
fisheries
BriE T Mining industries - - - - - -
HET S Manufacturing 6,552,605 5.02% 293,360 30,849 211,690 31,589
industries
TS FEEPR  Electricity, gas 3,369,604 2.58% - - - 7,662
Bl R K and water
A\ Construction and 7,404,139 5.67% 195,960 195,960 2,524 27,392
T2 public works
b 2% & EE  Wholesale and 12,248,394 9.38% 2,288,450 110,267 257,545 40,058
=" retail trade
8 & BE  Restaurants, hotels 1,238,978 0.95% 234 - 234 4,899
SO E R and similar
HRATT%
g - 82 Transport, 1,627,214 1.25% - - - 5,319
FamER warehouse and
communications
JE & # 4  Non-monetary 12,475,794 9.55% - - - 68,015
Rt financial
institutions
HE¥E Education 454,803 0.35% - - - 1,044
—GLE Information 686,381 0.53% - - - 724
technology
HA 7O Other industries® 49,581,681 37.97% 7,710,303 3,856,819 2,101,075 504,850
[EUN=E Personal loans 34,471,814  26.40% 746,803 565,031 145,072 180,675
130,569,318 100.00% 11,235,110 4,758,926 2,718,140 872,807
fffsE - Note:
(1) HirfrETrEmaitEESE - HEYERS (1) Other industries mainly include real estate, leasing and
B~ RRITESS%: - property investment, and tourism industry etc.
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4. SRUEBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EHERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D S HAMMETE (48) (II) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(O #HPEFESE (8 (C) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(i) fetE I 2 & P SRR (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to
customers

THIRE R a2 & I M The following geographical analysis of advances
ERBEAR G T2 st W E R to customers is based on the locations of the
JE\P RS R 2 - % P ERZ B IRA counterparties, after taking into account the
PRt % = PR et R = - RIE S transfer of risk. For an advance to customer
R R AN Z P et - guaranteed by a party situated in a location

different from the customer, the risk will be
transferred to the location of the guarantor.

2024 2023
=g et ] Gross advances to customers
eiEp A Macao, China 55,528,995 55,407,273
=8 A Mainland China 42,923,625 52,367,603
(REEEaE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
R A Hong Kong, China 19,299,038 18,183,933
HA [ 52 fiisth & Other countries and regions 5,984,515 4,610,509
123,736,173 130,569,318
MELERESEEY >  Impairment allowances made in
BUERME — E—HE respect of the gross advances to
TEEE customers - Stages 1 and 2
o 5] R P Macao, China 188,164 282,828
=8| A Mainland China 408,769 460,400
(REEEeHE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
R A Hong Kong, China 34,905 82,710
HA S A Other countries and regions 52,081 46,869
684,819 872,807
BHIEE=EA &%  Advances overdue for more than 3
months
o 5] R Macao, China 2,054,251 1,290,445
=8 A Mainland China 9,904,185 1,923,481
(REEEaHE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
R A Hong Kong, China 3,761,123 1,545,000
15,719,559 4,758,926
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(II) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(C) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to

(%) customers (continued)
2024 2023
BEAMEEE=(HE>E Impairment allowances made in
SERZ BEERE — respect of the advances overdue
EEPEE for more than 3 months - Stage 3
7 =7 R P Macao, China 674,250 128,608
ah N Mainland China 2,611,700 754,861
A EEREHIE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
B A Hong Kong, China 875,274 154,500
4,161,224 1,037,969
B BT EEORE Classified or impaired advances
o [ P Macao, China 2,183,252 2,033,890
o e [ A Mainland China 13,859,594 5,784,277
(A EEEEHE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
HEIE Hong Kong, China 4,350,548 3,416,943
20,393,394 11,235,110
R ESERRES Impairment allowances made in
HIEHZ BEEH respect of the classified or
— BB impaired advances - Stage 3
o B3 P Macao, China 713,852 477,638
o e [ A Mainland China 3,232,171 1,973,711
(A EEEEHE) (Excluding Hong Kong, Macao
and Taiwan)
R A Hong Kong, China 1,019,211 266,791
4,965,234 2,718,140
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4. SEEREHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 FHER (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(I1) SR EHAIEIE (48) (II) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(D) Ure|&RE (D) Repossessed assets
EAEEPSI ASRITE S TR During the year, the Bank obtained assets by
BEMTMIETA+ A =+—H taking possession of collateral held as security. The
= jJEEI’j seiEe > LR R HE B A nature and carrying value of these assets held as at
o a 31 December are summarised as follows:
2024 2023
EYEE Commercial properties 1,670,024 1,660,430
Wi [a1 3 7 i AN SR 1T 28 S R A LA The repossessed assets comprise properties in
Jia BB HIREN ) ZE (WE AR respect of which the Bank has acquired access or
Fr a2 F 5 FEA H R é? & 5 20T control (e.g. through court proceedings or
H ) T S AR E S 1T 2 Bl voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned)
par: 15 for release in full or in part of the obligations of the
borrowers.
BB & EEE IR BE 12 F 2 20 When the repossessed assets are not readily
KERFTHEHEE W LA T A 2R E convertible into cash, the Bank may consider the
following alternatives:
— PR E(ER - adjusting the selling prices
— HERAEE I EEK - selling the loans together with the assets
— ZHHEREH - arranging loan restructuring
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(IIT) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions before impairment allowances

W

TFIRT R Eftr4 Balances and placements
Bt~ 456% with banks and other

FERIER financial institutions
EH Pass
Hrp e Of which:

NER IR Impairment allowances

TFRT R Efr4 Balances and placements
Bt~ 4582  with banks and other

FERIER financial institutions
EH Pass
Hrp e Of which:

NER IR Impairment allowances

KB+ H=+—H G REER
(B Z SRAT R HoAh < RbBR AR 2 65 Bk R E SR 17 X

CECZE ).

—

are analysed by the five-category classifications and
stage determination as follows:

2024
e — = e =
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

12,221,574 - - 12,221,574

12,221,574 - - 12,221,574

(204) - - (204)

12,221,370 - - 12,221,370

2023
PEEL— PEEE— PEER= HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
17,015,380 - - 17,015,380
17,015,380 - - 17,015,380
(161) - - (161)
17,015,219 - - 17,015,219

As at 31 December 2024, there were no overdue or impaired
balance and placements with banks and other financial
institutions (2023: Nil).
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FESRAT e HoAth <5 Rl Al 2 &k K e AR L
TEZEREENE S RATT -

w—H—H At 1 January
A Net charge for the year

W+-H=+—H At31December

w—H—H At 1 January
PINEEEVES 4 ]| Net reversal for the
year

W+-H=+—H At31December

KB ZEA A =+—H G REER
(B Z SRAT R HoAh < RbBR AR 2 5 Bk R TE ST X

(OB )

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(IIT) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions is as

follows:
2024
e — R MRS
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
161 - - 161
43 - - 43
204 - - 204
2023
P — 275 PEEE= HEEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
849 - - 849
(688) - - (688)
161 - - 161

As at 31 December 2024, there were no overdue or impaired
balance and placements with banks and other financial
institutions (2023: Nil).
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4.

4.1

(IV)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit

TR B AR TEVAR S P B oA Z (R e 27
RS 4ERE H AR E - S T5Y
EIEILT > RIS T NSRS -

DA EEETEHE Investment in securities at
fair value through other

BERT AKMEE
Wis 2 BHIE
—Baa3 I F

- AT Baas

— dEETAR

Hoep e REAE

comprehensive income
— Above Baa3s

— Lower than Baa3

— Unrated

Of which:
Impairment allowances

DIEgS AT 2% Investment in securities

SRE
—Baaz I F
- AT Baas
— dEETAR

Hoop e REAE

at amortised cost
—Above Baa3

— Lower than Baa3
—Unrated

Of which:
Impairment allowances

Credit risk (continued)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of the
carrying value of debt securities and certificates of
deposit by issue rating and stage classification as at
reporting date. In the absence of such issue ratings,
the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2024
P B — R S 4
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

24,842,199 785,295 - 25,627,494

24,842,199 785,295 - 25,627,494

(10,316) (1,986) - (12,302)
7,500,326 568,846 - 8,069,172
- 002,235 408,121 1,310,356
8,238,778 - 2,056,050 10,294,828

15,739,104 1,471,081 2,464,171 19,674,356
(1,364) (17,786)  (1,605,664) (1,624,814)

15,737,740 1,453,295 858,507 18,049,542
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4. SRHEREHE @) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

a1 (SERK @ 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

AV)  ERsE I R raaE () (IV)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
TR B DA TR B P B i 2 (B 58 The following tables present an analysis of the
FAEECEE NG H IR - (F ST carrying value of debt securities and certificates of
SRS R > B ST A AR SR deposit by issue rating and stage classification as at
\(ZE‘-?) . ) ) reporting date. In the absence of such issue ratings,

i the ratings designated for the issuers are reported
(continued).
2023
PR — P e — M= Hust
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

AR EEEEERE Investment in securities at
BEETASM2E fair value through other
WS 2 B E comprehensive income

-Baaz D\ I - Above Baa3 24,885,280 619,720 - 25,505,000
- DUF Baa3 — Lower than Baa3 357,829 - _ 357,829
— frEETAR — Unrated - . } :

25,243,109 619,720 - 25,862,829

Hp: RE R Of which:
Impairment allowances (17,137) (1,220) - (18,357)

DI AEFE 8 Investment in securities

HRE at amortised cost
—-Baag Dl b - Above Baa3 4,212,196 572,249 - 4,784,445
- DUF Baasg - Lower than Baa3 - 1,005,281 1,578,176 2,583,457
— fEETAR - Unrated 6,862,028 - 836,844 7,608,872
11,074,224 1,577,530 2,415,020 15,066,774
Hrb o OREZE Of which:
Impairment allowances (510) (53,939) (1,517,376) (1,571,825)
11,073,714 1,523,591 897,644 13,494,949
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4.
4.1

Iv)

B EEF AFikaE Z B A B 1

FIRANE

PAnEEHEER
BT AHM2E
Was 2 R E

fr—H—H
PR
ENERESHEIS)

P+=ZH=+—H

PAnEEHEER
BT AHM2EH
Was 2 R

r—H—H
PR
ENERESHEIS)

Rt+ZH=+—H

Investment in securities

at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1
Net reversal for the year(®

At 31 December

Investment in securities

at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1
Net reversal for the year®

At 31 December

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt
securities and certificates of deposit is as follows:

2024
P EY— PR — FEER = HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
17,137 1,220 - 18,357
(93) 897 - 804
(6,728) (131) - (6,859)
10,316 1,986 - 12,302
2023
P& EE— PEEE— FEEE= et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
22,366 1,569 - 23,935
(478) 347 - (131)
(4,751) (696) - (5:447)
17,137 1,220 - 18,357
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4.

4.1

556 73 S ke L I (B S B B 15 Y

FRATT (4

DAt B8
FRE
R—HA—H
W PRE
AEE ()

HE W

P+=H=+—H

DigeriAt B8
FIE
BR—HA—H
PR
S R
I =PEE
AEE ()

/B

B+=HA=+—H

b -

Investment in securities

at amortised cost

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1

Net (reversal)/charge for
the year®

At 31 December

Investment in securities

at amortised cost

At 1 January

Transfer out from Stage 1

Transfer out from Stage 2

Transfer out from Stage 3

Net (reversal)/charge for
the year®

At 31 December

(1) AR ED/ B S/ CE e

PS4 Rt7 Akl
PS4 Rkl

HS5 1 -

RS REIRTE
» A S B A

Iv)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt
securities and certificates of deposit is as follows
(continued):

2024
PEEE— PEER— PEEE = 4T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
510 53,939 1,517,376 1,571,825
1 11 - 10
855 (36,164) 88,288 52,979
1,364 17,786 1,605,664 1,624,814
2023
PEEE— PEEE— PEER = 4T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1,893 62,761 204,818 359,472
(16) 16 - -
- (9,421) 673,144 663,723
(1,367) 583 549,414 548,630
510 53,939 1,517,376 1,571,825

Note:

(1) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises of the
impairment losses attributable to new/redeemed debt
securities and certificates of deposits, remaining debt
securities and certificates of deposits without stage
transfers, and changes to risk parameters, etc.
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4.
4.1

av)

investment in securities
i = (EFER 6 months or less but over

A S E A 3 months

RN EFER 1year or less but over 6
R months

i —A over 1 year

b FilisE5 % E  Impairment allowances

2 B e made in respect of such
investment in securities

F=PER Stage 3

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The gross impaired or overdue debt securities and
certificates of deposit are analysed as follows:

2024 2023
127,153 -
2,337,019 1,284,441
2)464)172 1,284,441
1,605,664 844,232
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4. SEUEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EHER (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

V) EHOREE B BIEREE (V) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
B N M TS TR & a2 T &R o S By s Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
ERS3Hal T are analysed by the five-category classifications and

stage determination as follows:
2024
P B — PEEE— PEEE= HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SRR T e Loan commitments and
RETE financial guarantee
contracts
EH Pass 18,088,022 165,896 - 18,253,918
fEE Special Mention - 69,255 - 69,255
TR Substandard - - 29,506 20,506
Eik=3 Doubtful - - 86 86
Bk Loss - _ i} )
18,088,022 235,151 29,592 18,352,765
Horr e Of which,
JAE ZE impairment allowance (8,188) (3,517) (6,703) (18,408)
18,079,834 231,634 22,889 18,334,357
2023
P& EE— PEEE— PEER= HaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SR B Loan commitments and
REHE financial guarantee
contracts
5 Pass 19,302,176 256,723 - 19,558,899
BEE Special Mention - 741,417 - 741,417
KR Substandard - - - -
EIE - Doubtful - - - -
Bk Loss - - - -
19,302,176 998,140 - 20,300,316
Hr e Of which,
NERIER impairment allowance (44,370) (5,992) - (50,362)
19,257,806 992,148 - 20,249,954
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4. SEEREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 (EHAEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
V) EHOKEE B IE RS E ) (V) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
(continued)
EHORKGE M BE R E R 2 B E A S E) Reconciliation of impairment allowances for loan
BEERA T commitments and financial guarantee contracts is as
follows:
2024
P — PR — PEEE= 4z
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R—A—H At 1 January 44,370 5,992 - 50,362
PR A Changes arising from
g transfer of stage
i L — [ Transfer out from Stage 1 (491) 3,070 6,559 9,138
B LS T RRED Transfer out from Stage 2 12 (1,154) - (1,142)
S =IEET Transfer out from Stage 3 - - . _
AAEF(EE) Net (reversal)/charge for the (35,703) (4,391) 144 (39,950)
[HEHEW year()
W+ _H=+—H At 31 December 8,188 3,517 6,703 18,408
2023
P — 275 FEEE= HEEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
H—H—H At 1 January 60,163 8,616 12 68,791
PP Changes arising from
) transfer of stage
B — R Transfer out from Stage 1 (15,198) 5,005 - (10,103)
R LS T R ED Transfer out from Stage 2 78 (1,104) - (1,026)
fEHEE = PR Transfer out from Stage 3 - - - -
AAEF(RE) Net (reversal)/charge for the
[HEHO year(® (673) (6,615) (12) (7,300)
r+=—H=+—H  At31December 44,370 5,992 - 50,362

FFaE Note :

(1) AREFEEE)/BEHERET SN/ CICHI & (1) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises of the
FOREE M SRR G TE] ~ REF4 SRR impairment losses attributable to new/cancelled loan
EEFUKE MTSIEREE - B RS EERR commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
LB - remaining loan commitments and financial guarantee

contracts without stage transfers, and changes to risk
parameters, etc.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4.

4.2

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk

Querview

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from
movements in the value of foreign exchange, interest
rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Bank
due to the volatility of financial market price. The
Bank adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve the balance between risk and return. The
Bank’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth, by the effective management of
potential market risk in the Bank’s business, according
to the Bank’s overall risk appetite and strategy of the
business on the basis of a well-established risk
management regime and related management
measures.

The market risk of the Bank mainly comes from debt
securities for business purposes, followed by debt
securities for liquidity purposes and related
investment business of stocks, and also involves
relatively small investment scale of debt securities and
equity instruments for trading purposes, etc.

In accordance with the Bank’s corporate governance
principles in respect of risk management, the Board,
senior managements and functional departments
/units perform their duties and responsibilities to
manage the Bank’s market risk. RM is responsible for
the Bank’s market risk management, assisting senior
managements to perform their day-to-day duties,
independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies, and ensuring
that the aggregate and individual market risks are
within acceptable levels.

The Bank uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange

exposure and interest rate re-pricing gap analysis as
the primary instruments to monitor market risk.
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KFTTELEHEW - REIRINE RS ATE R

FHERTEZ/KE » AR ERT

THI A EBRRER (B

T R R R E ) 1E BB TR - It

A ARERT

TEITFR V[ —

/(E.Ph&E/j:/’—\' é{‘ é

(R EHC - M A INE S EVE £ LN
FE B (BT e AR Y S e TR -

(1) BREFE R EH H RS EER

AN & M R B ie 140
SRIEE Financial assets
4 K EEZE  Cash and balances with

banks
FEIOAAFI4:Fl Deposits with AMCM
B
i EIZE K H A Placements with banks
SRR and other financial
institutions
SREE Financial investments
R HMHETE  Advances and other
accounts
Hpth & E Other assets
= Financial liabilities
$R1T R E At 4:Fl Deposits and balances
Mets > 1Z2 K of banks and other
sEER financial institutions
BT Deposits from
customers
BT Certificates of deposit in
issue
®“iEaE Subordinated liabilities
Hit&E Others liabilities
LEEMEFEY Net on-balance
sheet position
(S8R Credit commitments
ISR THE®  Derivatives ®

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(I  Foreign currency risk

T The majority of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are

denominated in Macao Patacas, Hong Kong Dollars
and United States Dollars. To ensure the currency risk
exposure of the Bank is kept to an acceptable level, risk
limits (e.g. Position and VaR limit) are used to serve as

a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Bank seeks to

minimise the gap between assets and liabilities in the

same currency. Foreign exchange contracts are usually
used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

(1) The exposure of the Bank’s financial assets and
financial liabilities to foreign currency risk at
each reporting date was as follows:

2024
BT BT £t NS HAth 85t
MOP HKD USD CNY Others Total
462,653 454,749 451,904 3,441,799 86,449 4,897,554
2,089,849 - - - - 2,089,849
937 1,560,517 1,651,662 2,677,226 200,067 6,090,409
6,817,950 9,647,390 36,139,978 228,874 167,849 53,002,041
28,450,042 58,731,800 12,680,104 16,365,573 1,858,601 118,086,120
73,868 633,013 132,532 5,321 (95,130) 749,604
37,895,299 71,027,469 51,056,180 22,718,793 2,217,836 184,915,577
1,410,817 4,730,357 5,762,156 6,202,305 1,187,406 19,293,041
29,655,003 82,416,859 12,926,034 16,178,215 1,281,904 142,458,015
- - 1,828,888 - - 1,828,888
- 2,065,757 - 1,640,668 - 3,706,425
86,267 789,979 38,334 22,511 10,857 947,948
31,152,087 90,002,952 20,555,412 24,043,699 2,480,167 168,237,317
6,743,212 (18,975,483) 30,500,768 (1,324,906)  (262,331) 16,681,260
3,019,837 8,987,456 3,727,557 856,820 34,439 16,626,109
(412,340)  (1,437,938)  (139,499) 1,922,567 40,175 (27,035)
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(1) BepEEM A AHEH NS EGRE
H #4120 T (48D -

ERIEE

B R IR

TR B <
EHE

PR IS R Hpth
RS

ERMEE

B R HAMARTH

HAtr g E

SR
ST R LAt o
b 78R
Gt
FFEL
TR

®RIEAMA
HoAh #5H

HEE R

EEUKGE

PrEEMTA®

i

Financial assets

Cash and balances with
banks

Deposits with AMCM

Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions

Financial investments

Advances and other
accounts

Other assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances
of banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from
customers

Certificates of deposit in
issue

Subordinated liabilities

Others liabilities

Net on-balance
sheet position

Credit commitments

Derivatives @

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 Market risk (continued)
(I)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

(1) The exposure of the Bank’s financial assets and
financial liabilities to foreign currency risk at
each reporting date was as follows (continued):

2023
BT HIT eI ANEEE A, &Eat
MOP HKD USD CNY Others Total
500,892 650,656 482,435 5,075,313 87,131 6,796,427
2,003,539 - - - - 2,003,539
409,580 2,513,705 3,728,929 2,172,576 337,300 9,162,090
5,233,084 9,370,200 34,845,240 855,030 179,826 50,483,380
26,281,044 66,692,896 13,958,537 17,434,499 2,611,395 126,978,371
118,211 477,864 123,670 4,519 (112,615) 611,649
34,546,350 79,705,321 53,138,811 25,541,937 3,103,037 196,035,456
1,895,385 4,704,953 14,778,917 15,105,793 2,424,392 38,909,440
25,132,731 89,628,113 7,594,265 13,189,921 1,438,166 136,983,196
- 2,065,757 - - - 2,065,757
150,989 413,469 80,161 26,879 5,821 677,319
27,179,105 96,812,292 22,453,343 28,322,593 3,868,379 178,635,712
7,367,245  (17,106,971) 30,685,468 (2,780,656)  (765,342) 17,399,744
3,851,405 9,483,812 3,577,774 695,595 56,738 17,665,324
- (4,908,143) 1,005,328 3,383,172 568,013 48,370

Note :

V) PTEEM TARMERITE TRNARA ST
# > BFEARSSEIH RIS - IS ~ SN

FOESHEHARE -

(1) Derivatives represent the net notional amount of currency
derivatives, including undelivered foreign exchange spot,
foreign exchange forward, foreign exchange swap and currency
option.
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{218 3% 3% depreciation
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(I)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

(2) The Bank uses sensitivity analysis to measure the
potential effect of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on the Bank’s profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The following table
sets forth, as at reporting date, the results of the
Bank’s foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis:

2024 2023
B Hremrdss 8w HAr s
Other Other
Profit comprehensive Profit comprehensive
or loss income or loss income
928,771 (15,266) 968,799 (20,911)
(928,771) 15,266 (968,799) 20,911

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static foreign
exchange exposure profile of assets and liabilities
and certain assumptions as follows: (1) the foreign
exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised
as a result of 300 basis point fluctuation in the
foreign currency exchange rates against MOP at
the reporting date; (2) the exchange rates against
MOP for all foreign currencies change in the same
direction simultaneously and does not take into
account the correlation effect of changes in
different foreign currencies; and (3) the foreign
exchange exposures calculated include both spot
foreign exchange exposures, foreign exchange
derivative instruments, and; all positions will be
retained and rolled over upon maturity. The
analysis does not take into account the effect of risk
management measures taken by management.
Due to the assumptions adopted, actual changes in
the Bank’s profit before tax and other
comprehensive income resulting from increases or
decreases in foreign exchange rates may differ
from the results of this sensitivity analysis.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings
and economic value arising from movements in
interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset
and liability positions. The Bank’s interest rate risk
exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

— Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or
repricing periods of assets and liabilities, and off-
balance sheet items, that may affect net interest
income and economic value;

— Basis risk: difference in pricing benchmarks
between on and off balance sheet items resulting
that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

— Yield curve risk: irregular changes in the interest
rate levels of different tenor on the yield curve that
may have an adverse impact on net interest income
or economic value; and

— Optionality risk: exercise of the options embedded
or implicit in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
assets and liabilities.

The Bank’s risk management framework applies also
to interest rate risk management. The Asset-Liability
Committee (“ALCQO”) exercises its oversight of interest
rate risk in accordance with the “Banking Book
Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
the RMICC. TD is responsible for interest rate risk
management. With the cooperation of FN, RM, and
Financial Products and Investment Management
Department (“FPIM”), TD assists the ALCO to
perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its
roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation of
management policies, setting of risk indicators and
limits, monitoring of the compliance with policies and
limits, and submission of interest rate risk
management reports to senior management and the
RMICC, etc.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.
4.2

(ID

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Bank sets out interest rate risk indicators and
limits to identify, measure, monitor and control
interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include,
but are not limited to duration, net interest income
sensitivity ratio (“NII”), and economic value limit
(“EV”), etc. The indicators and limits approved by the
ALCO and RMICC accordingly. Risk-taking business
units are required to conduct their business within the
boundary of the interest rate risk limits.

NII and EV assess the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net interest income and
capital base. They are the Bank’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest
rate movement on net interest income as a percentage
to the projected net interest income for the year. The
latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement
on EV (i.e. the net present value of cash flows of assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted
using the market interest rate) as a percentage to the
latest capital base. Limits are set by the RMICC on
these two indicators to monitor and control the Bank’s
banking book interest rate risk.

The Bank uses scenario analyses and stress tests to
assess the banking book interest rate risk that the
Bank would face under adverse circumstances.
Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to
assess the impact on net interest income and economic
value arising from the different interest rate changes.
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4. SEUEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 WIBERE & 4.2 Market risk (continued)
D FZEkE (48) (I) Interest rate risk (continued)
(1) #BEEGEH - SRR R (1) As at reporting date, if market interest rates had a
/TR EN 100 (EECEL - Hofth R ZE R e S 100 basis point parallel shift of the yield curve
SER o BPASRIT A+ A B R with other variables held constant, the
W AR R T - = sensitivities on net interest income over a 12
S ' month period for the Bank would have been as
follows:
2024 2023
3=y Ei=E
Profit Profit
or loss or loss
_EF 100 {iEF:EL + 100 basis points 1,048,282 942,970
TF% 100 {E&EE  — 100 basis points (1,048,282) (942,970)
bPitB R E AR EA R 0 B The measure above are for illustration only and
AIFE ([ERFER) THEEL » 4ifHR & are based on several assumptions, including, but
e B AR ~ FIRSEA RS E - not limited to, the change in the correlation
s - - between interest rates of relevant currencies
= NE SoE LN &b 57 - 2\., : ,
%Rd’)i;ibmﬁﬂ*%%ffb%ﬁ% gj W parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of
IR Bﬁg@J ) )j UksERL=) /‘j'ﬁ_@? HiH actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact
Ry JJ: X Efﬁ%éﬂ% HE &L ERTEH of interest rate risk, all positions being assumed to
BERBGIERIH Z EmiyE R run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
2o byl AR IE R AR SR T R RE A products in which the actual repricing date differs
R PR IEN)— R4 - from the contractual repricing date or products

without contractual maturity. The above
exposures form only a part of the Bank’s overall
interest rate risk exposures.
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Financial assets

Cash and balances with
banks

Deposits with AMCM

Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions

Financial investments

Advances and other
accounts

Derivative financial
instruments

Other assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
of banks and other
financial institutions
Deposits from
customers
Certificates of deposit in
issue
Derivative financial
instruments
Subordinated liabilities
Others liabilities

Interest
sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 Market risk (continued)
(IT) Interest rate risk (continued)
(2) The tables below summarise the Bank’s on-
balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk as at
EAE reporting date. Included in the tables are the
I . eye,* .
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing
date and maturity date.
2024
=EAN =Z=EAZ—F —FEZAfF HELAE TEHE dEEt
Between Between Non-
Less than 3 months to 1year to More than interest
3 month 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
3,779,584 261,528 - - 856,442 4,897,554
2,089,849 - - - - 2,089,849
5,820,151 270,258 - - - 6,090,409
15,027,706 5,992,405 21,062,553 3,373,688 7,545,689 53,002,041
101,613,705 7,642,320 8,827,883 2,212 - 118,086,120
14,382 1,838 - - - 16,220
599,868 146,146 3,592 - - 749,606
128,945,245 14,314,495 29,894,028 3,375,900 8,402,131 184,931,799
15,586,151 3,570,615 136,275 - - 19,293,041
107,536,740 29,092,026 3,744 - 5825505 142,458,015
1,828,888 - - - - 1,828,888
41,659 1,596 - - - 43,255
6,175 - 2,060,000 1,640,250 - 3,706,425
914,455 9,835 23,658 - - 947,948
125,914,068 32,674,072 2,223,677 1,640,250 5,825,505 168,277,572
3,031,177  (18,359,577) 27,670,351 1,735,650 2,576,626 16,654,227
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4. SEUEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WIBERE & 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(ID) FZE s (%) (I) Interest rate risk (continued)

(2) TEMH T ARERTINGEE H Z M HBAR (2) The tables below summarise the Bank’s on-
SR R E R R - N DBEEE Y] balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk as at
TRERAR MEAOWTEEDN  oring dae Iochded in he ables are
B EIH) LB Fy? R (4F) - . . CL
HEWIR (PR R 578 (50 categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing

date and maturity date (continued).
2023
=EARN =Z=EAZz—F —HFZHEFf HEMUE DS dEEt
Between Between Non-
Less than 3 months to 1year to More than interest
3 month 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
SREE Financial assets
4 7 EZ Cash and balances with
banks 5,779,586 70,004 - - 946,837 6,796,427
A EP94:5l  Deposits with AMCM
B 2,003,539 - - - - 2,003,539
YrsRTTEIZE K. Placements with banks
HrRi#%ME  and other financial
institutions 8,976,206 185,884 - - - 9,162,090
SR Financial investments 11,621,777 4,951,814 21,765,208 3,793,324 8,351,167 50,483,380
S HEETE  Advances and other
accounts 108,913,268 8,265,173 9,799,306 624 - 126,978,371
TESETHE Derivative financial
instruments 52,516 352 - - - 52,868
HAtr & Other assets 393,954 214,399 3,296 - - 611,649
137,740,846 13,687,626 31,567,900 3,793,948 9,298,004 196,088,324
= Financial liabilities
$RIT R Efth4Fh  Deposits and balances
2 F3K.  of banks and other
GkbR financial institutions 29,918,064 7,777,401 1,213,975 - - 38,909,440
EEreE (4 Deposits from
customers 96,800,023 36,330,885 17,791 - 3,833,597 136,983,196
TGS Certificates of deposit in
issue - - - - - -
Fi44mi T H  Derivative financial
instruments 4,367 131 - - - 4,498
#“iga& Subordinated liabilities - 5757 2,060,000 - - 2,065,757
Htrs i Others liabilities 646,204 7,336 23,779 - - 677,319
127,369,558 44,121,510 3,315,545 - 3,833,597 178,640,210
FIREEE Interest
BRO sensitivity gap 10,371,288  (30,433,884) 28,252,355 3,793,948 5,464,407 17,448,114
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4.

4.3

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to
obtain sufficient and timely funding in a short period
of time or at a reasonable cost to cope with the growth
of assets or the payment of debts when they are due.
The Bank's liquidity risk may be derived from specific
scenarios or liquidity risk events, such as a significant
decline in the value of liquid assets; a sudden large
withdrawal of deposits; limited or shortened funding
sources; downgrade of its own credit rating; or sudden
requests for margin calls or guarantee by
counterparties, etc.

In accordance with the Bank’s corporate governance
principles in respect of risk management, the Board,
ALCO, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and
responsibilities to manage the Bank’s liquidity risk.
The Board is the decision-making authority of
liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate
responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by the Board, ALCO exercises its oversight
of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the
Bank are in accordance with the risk appetite and
policies as set by the Board. FN is responsible for
overseeing the Bank’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with
the TD and RM, etc. to assist ALCO to perform
liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Bank considers liquidity risk management a
significant component of asset-liability management,
and determines the size, structure and duration of
assets and liabilities consistent with the principle of
overall balance between assets and liabilities. The
Bank establishes its liquidity portfolio to mitigate
liquidity risk, and to mininise the gaps in the amount
and duration between the funding sources and the
uses of funds. The Bank takes into consideration
various factors including customer risk sensitivity,
financing cost and concentration of funding sources.
In addition, the Bank prioritises the development of
customer deposits, dynamically adjusts the structure
of funding sources by market-oriented financing
modes, including due to banks and other financial
institutions, inter-bank borrowings and certificate of
deposit issuance, and improves the diversity and
stability of financing sources.
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4.

4.3

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to
cover outstanding loan commitments include “Cash
and balances with banks”, “Deposits with AMCM”,
“Placements with banks and other financial
institutions”, “Advances and other accounts”,
“Financial investments”, etc. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of short-term loans
contractually repayable will be extended and a portion
of short-term customer deposits will not be withdrawn
upon maturity. The Bank would also be able to meet
unexpected net cash outflows by borrowing funds
from inter-bank market, entering into repurchase
transactions, and by selling securities and accessing
additional funding sources.

The Bank manages liquidity risk by setting various
indicators and operational limits according to the
overall position of the Bank’s financial assets and
financial liabilities, with referencing to market
condition. The Bank holds assets with high liquidity to
meet unexpected and material demand for payments
in the ordinary course of business.

The tools that the Bank uses to measure and monitor
liquidity risk mainly include:

— Liquidity gap analysis;

— Liquidity indicators monitoring (including but not
limited to regulated and internal managed
indicators, such as liquidity coverage ratio, loan-
to-deposit ratio, liquidity ratio);

— Scenario analysis;

— Stress testing.

On this basis, the Bank establishes regular reporting
mechanisms for liquidity risk to report the latest
situation of liquidity risk to the senior management on
a timely basis.
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4. SpElEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 REMERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(1) FEAH 5T (1) Maturity analysis
TRERRTHNGEEHE  EELE The tables below analyse the Bank’s assets and
EAAEE-S 4 HA H 1R e HAFR 4y XE g &) liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
H 4347 on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date.
2024
—f{@H =EA —5F
BIHA —@AW E={EH FE—F E=F Z£MNE FTHEHH “EEE
Within 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over
On demand 1month 3 months to 1year 3 years 3years Indefinite Total
SREE Financial assets
e R Cash and balances
dEES with banks 3,017,835 653,259 964,932 261,528 - - - 4897554
FEiiiigt! Deposits with
FEmE AMCM
R 2,089,849 - - - - - - 2,089,849
HFsR T, Placements with
Ho 4 banks and other
Tkt financial
institutions - 5,807,540 12,611 270,258 - - - 6,090,409
SR Financial
investments 4,297,480 10,859,887 2,509,950 6,380,857 14,344,462 12,027,034 2,582,371 53,002,041
B Advances and
HHRTE other accounts 15,416,807 3,847,460 4,695,103 27,292,108 25,803,253 41,031,389 - 118,086,120
T4 SR Derivative financial
TE Instruments - 11,792 2,589 1,839 - - - 16,220
HAtr & Other assets - - 599,868 146,146 3,592 - 749,606
24,821,971 21,179,938 8,785,053 34,352,736 40,151,307 53,058,423 2,582,371 184,931,799
SRS Financial
liabilities
AT R Deposits and
4> il balances of banks
K 2 and other
e financial
S institutions 80,934 7,892,594 7,612,623 3,570,615 136,275 - - 19,293,041
IR Deposits from
customers 27,426,103 30,923,999 55,012,143 29,092,026 3,744 - - 142,458,015
B{T17EREs  Certificates of
) deposit in issue - 478,636 1,350,252 - - - - 1,828,888
LRl Derivative financial
THE instruments - 10,607 31,052 1,596 - - - 43,255
®IEGEE Subordinated
liabilities - 6,175 - - - 3,700,250 - 3,706,425
HoAth & F Others liabilities - - 914,455 9,835 23,658 - - 947,948
27,507,037 39,312,011 64,920,525 32,674,072 163,677 3,700,250 - 168,277,572
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(1) Maturity analysis (continued)

THRERRITIHNGEE R BELE The tables below analyse the Bank’s assets and
{EFE I & 49 EA B 50 65 HIPR 43 8 1y liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

FIHAH 5047 (48) - on the remaining per¥od at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date (continued).
2023
—f{@H =f@H —4F
BIHA —EARN EZ={EH B E=F Z=£MNEF FrHEEHH FeEEl
Within 1 monthto 3 months 1yearto Over
On demand 1month 3 months to 1 year 3 years 3years Indefinite Total
£RiEE  Financial assets
e KT Cash and balances
JdEES with banks 5,221,288 1,231,009 274,126 70,004 - - - 6,796,427
(iU Deposits with
FERE AMCM
5 2,003,539 - - - - - - 2,003,539
HrtE2 K, Placements with
Hfth 4 banks and other
ek financial
institutions - 8,976,206 - 185,884 - - - 9,162,090
& Financial
investments 1,474,741 7,554,389 2,376,546 4,034,274 10,732,554 17,906,573 6,404,303 50,483,380
B Advances and
ftiiRE other accounts 1,315,685 3,609,493 8815496 32,777,568 25,618,414 46,234,745 8,516,970 126,978,371
AR Derivative financial
TH instruments _ 35,405 17,111 352 ) ) i 52,868
FMHE  Other assets - - 393,954 214,399 3,296 - - 611,649

10,015,253 21,496,502 11,877,233 37,282,481 36,354,264 64,141,318 14,921,273 196,088,324
SRaE Financial
liabilities
SRT R Deposits and
4 balances of banks
fiztesx  andother
TGk ﬁnapc1a}1
institutions 136,901 15,139,502 10,094,085 8,411,652 5,127,300 - - 38,909,440
L EIFER Deposits from
customers 26,229,512 30,390,134 6,673,576 36,330,884 17,791 - - 136,983,196
77 EkEs  Certificates of
deposit in issue - - - - - - - -
TSR Derivative financial
TH instruments - 2,019 2348 131 _ _ _ 4,498
“IEAE Subordinated
liabilities - - - 5,757 - 2,060,000 - 2,065,757
Hth& & Others liabilities - _ 646,204 7,336 23,779 _ _ 677,319
26,366,413 45,531,655 54,757,512 44,755,760 5,168,870 2,060,000 - 178,640,210
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4 SRURREE @)
4.3 FEyEER 60

(2) FECTETEZIRER
R T AT N GE R H Z IR
il & DR R S VBT YR Z R

PR GRS -

&$Fiaf  Financial
Liabilities
SRITRE Deposits and
4 R balances of banks

W7 and other

financial
4k R
Rtk institutions
g=raryd Deposits from
customers

BT Certificates of
deposit in issue

®“IEEE Subordinated
liabilities

Hi& & Others liabilities

$Fiaf  Financial
Liabilities
$R47RE Deposits and
4> R balances of banks

W7 and other

financial
e
Rt institutions
g =yexid Deposits from
customers

BT Certificates of
deposit in issue

%EAE Subordinated
liabilities

Hi& & Others liabilities

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(2) Non-derivative cash flows
The tables below summarise the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Bank as at
reporting date for non-derivative financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
2024

—fEH =fEH —=

BP3A —EAN Z=fEH 25 B=EF =EME )
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1 year to Over
demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
80,933 7,892,594 7,612,623 3,570,615 144,371 - 19,301,136
27,426,104 30,923,999 55,012,143 29,092,069 4,093 - 142,458,408
- 478,636 1,350,252 - - - 1,828,888
- - - 210,160 399,534 4,433,031 5,042,725
- - 917,455 6,053 23,658 - 947,166
27,507,037 39,295,229 64,892,473 32,878,897 571,656 4,433,031 169,578,323
2023

—f@A =fEg —4&

B3 —fEAN Z={EH B B4 =&MU E ]
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1year to Over

demand 1 month 3 months to 1year 3 years 3 years Total
136,901 15,139,502 10,094,085 8,411,652 5,466,653 - 39,248,793
26,229,511 30,390,133 44,014,876 36,333,902 18,249 - 136,986,671
- - - 129,357 247,200 2,301,443 2,678,000
- - 643,691 7,336 26,292 - 677,319
26,366,412 45,529,635 54,752,652 44,882,247 5,758,394 2,301,443 179,590,783

89



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED
MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

GRS g s e N NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(BREFRIEEERSS » SEEEENY B RS CToT) (Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)
4. SpElEEHE (&) 4 Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REMERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(3) TTAETEZIRER (3) Derivative cash flows

R T ASRIT ISR - TR
RERTAESM TR CNnAMEY
BRENAER) - DREREEHIH ]
TNZIREI - BRES T TR SO E
EYIRIN N RILERAH M S Rk
TR SRR -

AT R A S R Z T A SR T
H ¥R K S s -

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the
Bank by remaining contractual maturity as at
reporting date for all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis
regardless of whether the contract is in an asset or
liability position. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows, except for certain derivatives which are
disclosed at fair value.

The Bank’s derivative financial instruments will
be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency
forwards and currency swaps.

2024
—fER =f@ER —=
BITEA —EHRA Z=EH B B=4F =FUE )
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1 year to Over
demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
27 44 %5 £ & Derivative financial
e, s instruments
éffE” LA settled on a gross
EHTE  basis
HRA Total inflow _ 5,215,479 2,266,640 36,546 - - 7,518,665
37 Total outflow } (5,217,194) (2,297,072) (38,219) - - (7,552,485)
- (1,715) (30,432) (1,673) - - (33,820)
2023
—fEA =R —
BIEH —fEAN 2=fEH 24 B=4 =&MU E LG
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1year to Over
demand 1 month 3 months to 1year 3 years 3 years Total
2% 44 %5 4 & Derivative financial
YN instruments
Z/ffg” LA settled on a gross
ERTE  pasis
A Total inflow - 3,621,742 2,823,886 10,982 - - 6,456,610
Ham Total outflow - (3,590,039)  (2,815,042) (10,671) - - (6,415,752)
- 31,703 8,844 311 - - 40,858
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4. SEEBREHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 mEMEERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(4) FHMEE 1. Off-balance sheet items
TEERETNGEH R/ EH The tables below summarise the off-balance sheet
SRR AR T » BRI i ia s items at the remaining periqd to the con.tractqal
L R FIH E D3 SAE T - maturity date as at reporting date. Fmapmal
guarantees are also included below at notional
amounts and based on the earliest contractual
maturity date.
2024
—fEH ={#EH —4F
EIEE] —ERA Z=A 24 Z=F  =HDE L L]
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1 year to Over
demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
il S 4 Loan
RRcEeE commitments - 1,933,443 1,672,721 10,743,363 1,628,018 647,664 16,626,109
MR Financal
- guarantee
contracts 15,966 296,238 278,323 764,016 182,279 189,834 1,726,656
2023
—fEH ={EH —4F
ElILE] —EAN E=A 24 Z2=F  =HDE L L]
On Within 1 month to 3 months 1yearto Over
demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
sl S 4 Loan
e commitments - 2,547,081 2,425,884 9,635,743 1,856,247 1,200,369 17,665,324
MR Financal
- guarantee
contracts 38,919 687,832 742,219 758,656 202,762 204,604 2,634,992
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

5.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of the Bank’s business and
to ensure compliance with the statutory capital
adequacy ratio requirement, a requirement used to
assess the capital adequacy of banks. Capital is
allocated to the various activities of the Bank
depending on the risk taken by each business division.
Where the branches are directly regulated by other
regulators, they are required to maintain capital
according to the rules of those regulators.

The Bank’s objective when managing capital are: (1)
comply with the capital requirements under the
Macao Financial System Act; and (2) support the
Bank’s stability and business growth so as to provide
reasonable returns for shareholders.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored regularly by the Bank’s management,
employing techniques implemented by AMCM. The
required information is filed with the AMCM on a
quarterly basis.

The AMCM requires each bank or banking group to
maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-
weighted asset (the capital adequacy ratio) at or above
the minimum as stipulated by the AMCM. In addition,
branches outside Macao of the Bank are also directly
regulated and supervised by their local banking
supervisors, which may be different in different
jurisdictions.

The Bank has established a capital planning process to
assess the adequacy of its capital to support current
and future activities and to set the Bank’s capital
adequacy goals in relation to risk, taking into account
its strategic focus and business plan. Key factors to
consider in this process including additional capital
required for future expansion, results of the stress test
programme regularly conducted, dividend policy,
income recognition and provisioning policies.
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

6.

6.1

Fair value management
Financial instruments measured at fair value

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The
categorisation are determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are
classified into the following three levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities, including equity
securities listed on exchanges or debt instruments
issued by certain governments and certain exchange-
traded derivative contracts.

Level 2: Valuation technique for which all inputs that
have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. This level includes the majority of the over-
the-counter (“OTC”) derivative contracts, debt
securities for which quotations are available from
pricing service providers, discounted bills, etc.

Level 3: Valuation technique using inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value for the
asset or liability are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). This level includes equity
investments with significant unobservable
components.

The Bank’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

The Bank uses valuation techniques or counterparty
quotations to determine the fair value when it is
unable to obtain open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques
include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, correlations,
and others, which are all observable and obtainable
from the open market.
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6.

AREEEE (&)

6.1 DINAEESENSHMTE (&)

BIRARSRATRAA IR L e (LR ) -
B TS 5 T o 8 B A {E e ol
HEE AN SR E - A ER B IR ST R
& BEAMAE - THLREOESE - A R(E
EREtE R RERA T E S EEEERTE
A AT 2 ISR TR L B
BEETEF = -

FEATEE SN ERANARITIE LT
HEFER) AN ERT B 2 SHERETIRE 1.53x
(2023:1.45x) ~ i # M 1 1 30%
( 2023:30%) ° A\ EAEELE SR 2 AT LR
e,/ R HELRE EFEFEELER
BEl% o WA RR AL FE LR R AR E)
MR [FIRE (% - & FrA i E R e A
VB R AR R ZEEE s%EFE1,/ R
FIE(L (2023 4F 1 5%) » AnREEFZH

(1) ASREENFR

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

6.

6.1

SRIEE Financial assets
DI E{EEF A2 Financial assets at fair value
e S RhE through profit or loss
- HBAREE — Investment in securities
- K& - Funds
A ME{EE+=H  Financial assets at fair value
Hegahst AH{th4  through other comprehensive
Has 2 FiEE  income
- BHKE - Investment in securities
e T E Derivative financial instruments
e 3=t Financial liabilities
TRt TH Derivative financial instruments

Fair value management (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(continued)

For certain illiquid unlisted equity (private equity),
management obtains valuation quotations from
counterparties or uses valuation techniques to
determine the fair value, including the discounted
cash flow analysis, net asset value and market
comparison approach, etc. The fair value of these
financial instruments may be based on unobservable
inputs which may have a significant impact on the
valuation of these financial instruments, and
therefore, these assets and liabilities have been
classified by the Bank as Level 3.

The significant unobservable inputs applied in the fair
value measurement of the Bank’s unlisted equity
investments include price/book values ratios of the
comparables of 1.53x (2023: 1.45x) and liquidity
discount of 30% (2023: 30%). The fair value is
positively correlated to the price/book value ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values, and is
negatively correlated to the liquidity discount used in
the mean/average of price/book value ratios of
comparables. Had all of the significant unobservable
inputs applied on the valuation techniques favourably
changed/ unfavourably changed by 5% (2023: 5%), ,
the fair value will not be altered materially.

(1) Fair value hierarchy

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2,278,707 2,279,032 - 4,557,739
2,278,707 1,760,635 - 4,039,342

- 518,397 - 518,397
28,219,196 2,158,887 14,616 30,392,699
- 16,220 - 16,220
30,497,903 4,454,139 14,616 34,966,658
- (43,255) - (43,255)
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6. AREEEER @

6. Fair value management (continued)

6.1 DIAMEEFENSEHTE (8) 6.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

(1) ARBEENFR ()

(continued)

(1) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2023
Bk ETER E=IEER HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SRIEE Financial assets
DI fE{EEF AJE  Financial assets at fair value
e S RhE through profit or loss 4,849,208 2,246,081 242,926 7,338,305
- BHKE — Investment in securities 4,849,298 1,913,030 - 6,762,328
- A& - Funds - 333,051 242,926 575,977
DA nfEEEFEH  Financial assets at fair value
Hegahst AH{th4  through other comprehensive
HW &2 &/&#E  income
- BHEKE — Investment in securities 27,636,570 1,997,232 14,264 20,648,066
PT4EER TE Derivative financial instruments - 52,868 - 52,868
32,485,868 4,296,181 257,190 37,039,239
SRaE Financial liabilities
TSR T E Derivative financial instruments - (4,498) - (4,498)
KT SREENBEBEN _ZE UK _FE " There were no financial asset and liability transfers between
SRS R s f RS o level 1 and level 2 for the Bank during 2024 and 2023.

(2) F=JEPHEHMETR

r—H—H

N EEESER N HAr e
[EfiE

P+=ZH=+—H

NERAFFAIZEA LM S
TS g AR R 2 L (B {E B
EE T Eat AH A 2 mas
KA BB Z FEAN
Hlra

(2) Reconciliation of level 3 items

DA B a8 H A ST A H A2
THI W e ) < R T
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Rt T H
Equity
instruments
2024 2023
At 1 January 14,264 14,046
Changes in fair value
recognised in the other
comprehensive income 352 218
At 31 December 14,616 14,264
Total gain for the year
included in fair value reserve
of the other comprehensive
income for assets held at the
reporting date 352 218
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6. ANEEEHE (&) 6. Fair value management (continued)
6.1 DIAREESENSRTE (8) 6.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(continued)
(2) FE=IG4IEHFEER (&) (2) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

DA efBER B B HEH R A R
Rl A

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

H
Funds
2024 2023

w—H—H At 1 January 242,926 -

A Addition - 241,920

AnEEEEHN AR Changes in  fair  value

recognised in the profit or
loss (1,006) 1,006

s = s ps (D) Transfer out from Stage 3(*) (241,920) -

wWt+_H=+—H At 31 December - 242,926

BFEE - Note:

(1)  HPREE e T B E A A B (1) At the end of the reporting period, certain financial
(HsE A BRSNS E R e aE L instruments were transferred out from level 3 of the fair
S EE - AT AR B s yaluet hier:iirc'hyt}flog ﬁ;le'lnciall assets, when signiﬁ}cla'ln}’i
= A 5 ok L e e o it <t inputs used in their fair value measurements, whic
];j;;i‘“{% PASRUBT RATE = E R R wg)re previously unobservable became observable, or

£

when there was a change in valuation technique.
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6. ANEEEHE (&) 6. Fair value management (continued)
6.2 JEDIANEESTENSRTE 6.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value
NTEBEEUF—EEEEEEHETEE Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
Bl RE 4R T B RS - DU ) time based on relevant market information and
S R R 2 b B RS S A S & information about various ﬁnar}cial instruments. The
H T L A fE E foll.owmg methO(.is and assumptions have been used‘to
RS LR estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.
BRI EZRIEMAN NEEETENSE Financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
ERGaEIEaE  Be REREZE - Tk value in the statement of financial position mainly
AP 4 RIS ) - HERC RIS B ot S il represent “Ce,l’sh“and balances V\.Iith banks”, “Deposits
FE B9 R EEAIETE - DU R A B with  AMCM”, ‘Pla(iements with banks and oth(ir
G e M/ T o e T 1 financial institutions”, “Advances and other accounts”,
AR ﬁﬁf?&/\fﬂim%ff&%Zﬁjy\&m “Financial investments measured at amortised cost”,
B~ B #TEGE ~ MIREAE - “Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions”, “Deposits from customers”, “Certificates
of deposit issued” , and “Subordinated liabilities”.
TEREIEDATEHESTENESR T EZIE The following tables set out the carrying values and
EEFIA B - EEHIH FE—ERN R ENZ fair values of the financial instruments not measured
BRI By E IR S S AR & R - at fair lval“e>t excep {)0.{. t.the I;fn'creditt i.ltnypgirted
- s = e - inancial assets and liabilities whose maturity dates
A B IR B E RS FE - are within a year or are mainly floating interest rates,
as a result, their carrying values being approximation
of fair values:
2024
MM F—IEEk BREE  FEEEk N EE
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Value
SREE Financial assets
EFRHIEE K Advances and other
HArAETEO accounts bearing at
fixed interest rate @ 28,517,127 - 20,550,911 - 20,550,911
DlEkes Rk AETE > Investment in securities
BAER) at amortised cost (2) 3,722,054 2,008,716 102,578 - 3,011,294
32,230,181 2,008,716 20,653,489 - 23,562,205
SRaE Financial liabilities
R [EHG) Subordinated liabilities ® 3,706,425 - 3,565,164 - 3,565,164
3,706,425 - 3,565,164 - 3,565,164
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M B ERVERE AN AFERIN - HEHEIR
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Fair value management (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and
fair values of the financial instruments not measured
at fair value, except for the financial assets and
liabilities whose maturity dates are within a year or
are mainly floating interest rates, as a result, their
carrying values being approximation of fair values
(continued):

2023
IRAEE BBk BB F=REH ARfEE
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Value
SREE Financial assets
EEFRIYEE K, Advances and other
HAREO accounts bearing at
fixed interest rate @ 21,090,157 - 14,574,471 - 14,574,471
DU aREiAETE > Investment in securities
HEIEE) at amortised cost (2) 2,679,538 1,333,484 50,223 - 1,383,707
23,769,695 1,333,484 14,624,694 - 15,958,178
SREE Financial liabilities
EEFZRAYEETT R Deposits and balances of
HA B mitErE banks and other
FR R 45650) financial institutions at
fixed interest rate(3) 1,213,975 - 1,127,219 - 1,127,219
R [EHG) Subordinated liabilities(® 2,065,757 - 2,130,669 - 2,130,669
3,279,732 - 3,257,888 - 3,257,888
Bfat:: Notes:
(1) [EEF RS R HA AR TS (1) Advances and other accounts bearing at fixed interest
rate

W] TE FRAY B0 b HAM AR I 2 f5 52 SefE 95
FHETARAGEF GBI 507 2 REFREEE - PGt
e AT IR TSR LU E A~ fefE -

(2) DR AT B
RIRITRAA G A N A R EE LT 5 E
RREC N 5X 5 PR (B R B RE AN SR R TS
MHERAE S RIS2E S {E R SRR LA ERE SR
R SR AT AT A (E - (SESEEETY
SRR ~ TRHTELR ~ JRATERCR KT Eh
M -

The estimated fair value of advances and other
accounts bearing at fixed interest rate represents the
discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(2) Investment in securities at amortised cost

Fair values of other investment in securities are based
on market prices or broker/dealer price quotations.
Where this information is not available, the Bank will
perform valuation by referring to prices from valuation
service providers or on the basis of discounted cash
flow models. Valuation parameters include market
interest rates, expected future default rates,
prepayment rates and market liquidity.
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6.3

AREEEE (&)
FEUAREESTEVER TR (8)

TREIEUAS REETEN M TR ZIRE
BN EE - BRI EEENELOZEE)
M B ERVERE E M ERRIN - R RHIR
R BB A R EEED ¢

(3) [&EIE FI A SRAT R HoAMh Rl 2 750 e
SR SRR (AR

ZFEAREN A R EEERT SR ES R - $10
AT SERER S AL RIRIER 2 H
TR LU E A fufE -

DA nfEEt EBRYFEER TR

ASSRAT 88— L A (R i S o T 5 i (E 2
HfEE Rl T ARV SEE -

B A

AT Z H A HE R RETERS - A
2 AG (8 BT R 5 N B B S TR P T A TR
NEETT - AR B RN EMSE g E R
BEEG R NEEGRERZ AR - WAEMSE
VISR st e R e 4B -

B EREAREITE > ASRITE R g RN
Rl G ETT A M E R RS EEER - (5
EITENFNIGANE - TREFE 2 -

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

6.

6.2

6.3

Fair value management (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and
fair values of the financial instruments not measured
at fair value, except for the financial assets and
liabilities whose maturity dates are within a year or
are mainly floating interest rates, as a result, their
carrying values being approximation of fair values
(continued):

(3) Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions and subordinated liabilities at fixed
interest rate
The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices. For those bonds where quoted
market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
model is used based on current market rates to
determine the fair value for the remaining term to
maturity.

Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Bank uses valuation techniques or quoted
market prices in active market to determine the fair

value of non-financial instruments.

Owner-occupied properties

The Bank’s owner-occupied properties were
revalued as at year end. This year, the valuations
were carried out by an independent professionally
qualified valuer - Vigers Macao Company Limited,
conforming to the HKIS Valuation Standards on
Properties published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

The Bank’s management had discussions with the
surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each annual reporting
date. There has been no change in valuation
methods during the year and the methods used are
consistent with last year.
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6. ANEEEHE (&) 6. Fair value management (continued)
6.3 DANEESENIEEM TR 6.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value
1) AnfEsrERANGEETEMARE (1) Valuation methods and inputs used in fair value

WIZEE N OB T S BT LB 2 T i
RS E (HEEESE) ReEEH
SRERMER (WABARE) - HETT
WY R TG 3 2 R 2 A
R o PSR R R R
MR E A -

(2) ARAE=l@R A nERFEIER

W RS = AR AR RITYISE Z A e
EXTRA TS EETABUAE AL - %
ASRITVISEATE Y o] EERY R 2 M E fE
P (ER AR E -

LUN BAE S seE T BB RS = g4k
ZARSRITVIZEF PR HIAS (B 774 R EERA A

measurements

The fair value of properties is determined using
either the market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties or the income capitalisation approach
by reference to market rent and capitalisation
rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect the
differences between the comparable properties
and the subject properties. These adjustments
are considered as insignificant to the
measurement.

(2) Information about level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of all of the Bank’s properties
classified as level 3 is determined using either the
market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the features of the Bank’s
properties compared to the comparable
properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement of the

R Bank’s properties classified as level 3 are as follows:
(GIEWARrS HANATEZERNZE IR RATEIERREA RER G
Valuation Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable
method unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
SRATITHE TSILECARAEATE PSRBT LLIY)SRAE  -49%-17%  G(EEE > ASCERE -
WE EZGE (FrE)  (2023: -26- HrEAS » AOEMK -
23%)
Bank Market comparison Premium/(discount) -49%-17% The higher the premium, the
premises approach or income on features of the (2023: -26- higher the fair value.
capitalisation property comparedto  23%) The higher the discount, the
approach comparable properties lower the fair value.
Bk Precious metals
HeB oA nBEEE SR TS RESNE S The fair values of precious metals are determined by
TR T S s R o obtaining quoted market prices in active market or

market quote with certain adjustments.
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6. ANEEEHE (&) 6. Fair value management (continued)

6.3 DIAREESENIEERM TR 6.3

(3) AR(EEHIZFER

JESRIERE Non-financial assets
Y% - BRM K% Property, plant and
equipment
- SRfT{THE — Bank premises
HEzE Other assets
- BB — Precious metals
JESRIERE Non-financial assets
Y% - RM K% Property, plant and
equipment
- SRfT{THE — Bank premises
HEzE Other assets
- BB — Precious metals

AT ZIRERMEBEENFNICEE @
FER = R R -

(@) F=ERAIHE EE

$RITITHE Bank premises
w—H—H At 1 January
$RIT{THEEfE > (Deficit)/surplus on
(541 E1ERTESY. revaluation of bank
PHEAM U premises recognised in the
other comprehensive

income
#rEs Depreciation
P 7 %E Exchange difference

W+—-H=+—H At31December

Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value

(3) Fair value hierarchy

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- - 376461935 3,646>935

58,821 - - 58,821

58,821 - 3,646,935 3,705,756
2023

E—lEgik Ik =gk HaEt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- - 3,931,357 3,931,357

132,652 - - 132,652

132,652 - 3,931,357 4,064,009

There were no non-financial asset transfers between
level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the Bank during the
years.

(4) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2024 2023
3,931,357 4,028,280
(176,673) 9,091
(107,113) (105,700)

(636) (314)
3,646,935 3,931,357
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7. TTHERTE 7.
AT EREIRZ S - B - BEEAREEE A

F Ry H AV TA SEEEESR ~ IR ~ R S < A
PTA SR TR -

AITRANTTEEH T ANGE £ 8E
BREANRREETIROT - SHECTAE SR TR
&, RSB E R BRI R NP
HYEE SR ERT A B EFE LA LAY ERE - 16
AR AR £ B BCE AT A L E
{8 KMt RE R ASRT T R s A (3 F
s - G BT R TR S 4UMRRHE
BREITTS AR « SNEER - (SHEES#R
P AR HREN - 074 SR T B HYfSE rTaE ¥
SRITEEEAA () SAF] (R By
B AR E A R A BRI ) -

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank enters into foreign currency exchange rate,
interest rate and precious metals related derivative
financial instruments for trading, hedging, asset and
liability management and customer initiated
transactions.

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of
derivative instruments held by the Bank are set out in
the following tables. The contractual/notional amounts
of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison
with the fair values of instruments recognised in the
statement of financial position but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or
the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore,
do not indicate the Bank’s exposure to credit or market
risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates or equity/commodity prices relative to
their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative

financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.
2024
N EE
Fair values
G EREE B AfF
Contractual/
Notional amounts Assets Liabilities
ERELY Exchange rate contracts

—E![]E;ﬁ mHA R HAE  —Spot, forwards and futures 1,341,321 704 (4,089)
— 74 —Swaps 6,281,345 14,837 (39,166)

—HARE —Options 89,056 679
7,711,722 16,220 (43,255)

2023
NEE
Fair values
GRS HiE AfE
Contractual/
Notional amounts Assets Liabilities
EREEY Exchange rate contracts

—EU,HH mHIRHEAE  -Spot, forwards and futures 380,685 4,785 (1,044)
— {44 —Swaps 6,075,924 46,244 (575)
- HAfE —Options 227,781 1,839 (2,879)
6,684,390 52,868 (4,498)
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derivative transactions

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Off-balance sheet exposures other than

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts

TELEENEE of each significant class of contingent liabilities and
commitments :
2024 2023
HEEERE Direct credit substitutes 1,571,377 1,451,714
oA 2 BUORETS Transaction-related contingencies 120,892 349,746
E B 2 SORE TS Trade-related contingencies 34,387 833,532
HoAfth A HE Other commitments 16,626,109 17,665,324
18,352,765 20,300,316
9. BEAE 9. Subordinated liabilities

2024 2023

®RIEAMGE DB E Subordinated liabilities, at

amortised cost

TR EEBITTRREFW 2023 HKD Debt securities® 2,065,757 2,065,757
ZE_IEIEE ANEBEBEREG® 2024 CNY Debt securities® 1,640,668 -
3,706,425 2,065,757
IERE) Non-current 3,700,250 2,060,000
JEh Current 6,175 5,757
3,706,425 2,065,757

PRyaE: Notes:
(1) EHEMASREERME R = (1) In December 2023, the Bank issued a debt of

(2

F+ T BT ARE B#EIT 2,000,000

Tt (FHZEREFTTT 2,060,000 TIT)

FER 6 BEEEMESR  FHHE T =

ZAF o IESBIRITREE S - AEA

FIEHVEE NS SRITH — A A fE

Z(ﬁf%“zﬁ“fﬁ THHEE AN ES » 1+
5 AL RT3 T A SB[ -

R emE R EE N E Y
N AR R B SR T ﬁﬁ%k%m
1,500,000 T 7T (fHFE R EF T
165200?7wﬁﬁ£%465F7E%W
BEF FHIE B ZVUE - L E5E
RITRBES - AHFENTEEIR
%ﬂ%ﬁ THI— BB 2 R E LR
TS AR ES » TEREAFERNTE
ﬁkk@%

HKD 2,000,000 thousand (equivalent to MOP
2,060,000 thousand) at fixed rate of 6% per
annum after AMCM’s approval, maturing in
2033. The debts are subordinated debts and its
principal and interest rank after the Bank’s
normal debts but before the Bank’s share
capital in the repayment order. The Bank is
entitled to redeem the bonds at the end of the
fifth year.

(2) In June 2024, the Bank issued a debt of CNY
1,500,000 thousand (equivalent to MOP
1,651,200 thousand) at fixed rate of 4.65% per
annum after AMCM’s approval, maturing in
2034. The debts are subordinated debts and its
principal and interest rank after the Bank’s
normal debts but before the Bank’s share
capital in the repayment order. The Bank is
entitled to redeem the bonds at the end of the
fifth year.
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10. KeARHMESRTE 10. Share capital and other equity instruments
(1) BeA (1) Share capital
2024 2023
IR A Ordinary share capital
—-EEEM ~ 2704 —Authorised, issued and fully paid:
Je
1,000,000 JEEFH 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000
JEFHIT 1,000 7T each 1,000,000 1,000,000
[CE R ZN Preference share capital
—-ELEEM - #1704 —Authorised, issued and fully paid:
g 500,000 500,000
300,000 S E R R 300,000 shares of MOP 1,000
9T 1,000 JT® each @ 300,000 300,000
200,000 K&HEEHG A 200,000 shares of MOP 1,000
97T 1,000 T each @ 200,000 200,000
1,500,000 1,500,000
(2) A E (2) Share premium
2024 2023
1B S Preference share premium
—~ELEEM ~ #f76%%  —Authorised, issued and fully
JE ¢ paid:
300,000 H&FH R 300,000 shares of MOP 7,500
P97t 7,500 JT® each @ 2,250,000 2,250,000
200,000 &SR 200,000 shares of MOP 12,250
9T 12,250 7@ each @ 2,450,000 2,450,000
4,700,000 4,700,000
(3) EfifEzm TE (3) Other equity instruments
2024 2023
Tk EE(E Perpetual bonds
—EEE - #1704, —Authorised, issued and fully
JE ¢ paid:
2022 FEEIN—4R 2022 additional tier 1 capital
HATEH G instrument ® 2,720,500 2,729,500
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P B R bt
(PREFRIFEAST - 8BS RRFTTTIT)

10.

B R HAt iR T H (8D

bt

®

AT B —FAFNH A UH #&47
=+ERERAR(T ZE-HFEEL
B ) 2EEGRSUENEETT - SR
{8 Rt ([ E 57 7 BP9 7T 1,000 JT K
JEFSTT 7,500 TC o AR E AR EIYE
XRS5y 71 R P 300,000 7T B
F95T 2,250,000 7T °

(2) RIRITHR=F—CFNA+HHET

T+ ERER(T ZE - EEL
B ) SEEEIR SIS T > SR EE
Bt (BB 57 7l Ry 97T 1,000 7T R
FI7T 12,250 JC ° AR ME AR GEME
B Y B R F97T 200,000 FIT R
T 2,450,000 TIT

(3) AIRTH _E__FE+ZHZ+JLH

11.

AT 2,650,000 TILEIN—RER
TH - B—H{E BT 1,000 70 &
BB TT > BRBIER 6% °
BIN—4EAR T BBk A2 » HIRUL
ESIERE ST » TR Rk A AR ERELR - §R
TEREBITREECHHEES - iR
a4 R P E M S B i A e
KER > ZEAEE IR E Ly
Br o FOEBE > IEEEAEBEERST
R o

R BRI

B R ERIE B TH H A4S

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

10. Share capital and other equity instruments

(continued)

Notes:

(1) On 24 June 2015, the Bank has issued 300,000

(2)

(3)

11.

preference shares ( “2015 preference shares”), with
nominal value and premium value of MOP1,000
and MOP7,500 each respectively, fully paid up by
cash. The total share capital and share premium
increments are MOP300,000 thousand and
MOP2,250,000 thousand respectively.

On 15 September 2017, the Bank has issued
200,000 preference shares( “2017 preference
shares”), with nominal value and premium value of
MOP1,000 and MOP12,250 each respectively, fully
paid up by cash. The total share capital and share
premium increments are MOP200,000 thousand
and MOP2,450,000 thousand respectively.

On 29 December 2022, the Bank has issued HKD
2,650,000 thousand additional tier 1 capital
instrument, with nominal value of HKD 1,000
thousand , fully paid up by cash. Coupon rate is 6%.
Additional tier 1 capital instrument is a type of
perpetual capital instrument, which is qualified as
loss-absorbing  capacity, is perpetual and
subordinated. The coupon payments of this capital
instrument may be cancelled at the sole discretion
of the Bank. The capital instruments will be written
down at the point on the occurrence of a non-
viability trigger event. They rank higher than
ordinary shares in the event of a winding-up.

Notes to statement of cash flows

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

2024 2023
AT Cash 856,443 946,837
RIS R A S A A B Money at call and short notice 1,961,327 4,133,032
FRUS H M SR T fe Deposits with other banks and
Rl financial institutions 58,574 218,748
FREIEHHE=EANZ Placements with banks and other
TFIRB AT SR TR 2 financial institutions with original
e HoAM G Rl Tk maturity within three months 6,036,284 8,976,319
FEIFAHE=EANZ Financial investments with original
EREE maturity within three months 10,555,864 6,074,882
R SRS Deposits with AMCM in excess of
Y R R KA minimum statutory requirement 222 645 277,198
FiLPE A BIRTT 248 Deposits with PBOC in excess of
H A RS SR minimum statutory requirement 40,822 20,987
19,731,959 20,648,003
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12. EAHBRES 12. Material related party transactions

(1) BRI E R FEI R B AT S

(1) Transactions with the holding company and its

PR A AR ATR

RERITZ TP BSRATIEM] - HRIESTE
BEAMRAE (T ES ) ) EPERI T 1%
AE > TRERERERRETAH
("% ) 2EIEAE - mh R
MEINEE I EEHEGNEE &
- /AEIR

DEE < 1> Tk b PR T B 45 998 7 925 R R

ﬁ—]‘io

ARSRITHE I H SR P A F E R T
SRIT R EAMSER R S » b R
Bk R E NER TSRS - I
JEENHIRAT B — R At A F R (R
P[RR R EATNE

ERYZE e N F) e [F) 21 B A F YA B ok
B G EH IR

FRRZ G REE Transaction balances
as at 31 December
4 K AFE Cash and balances
B with banks
PR = H Placements with banks
S Eib R and other financial
institutions
EREE Financial instruments
SRIT R HoAth 4 Deposits and balances
Flers > 1731 of banks and other
Tkt financial institutions
BEEERK Deposits from
customers
TGS Certificates of deposit
in issue
®“EAE Subordinated
liabilities
FERRGEE Transaction amounts
during the year
FEHA Interest income
FIEZH Interest expense

E#%E R H4eU Feeand commission

A income
R#% % K {4 ¥ Feeand commission
H expense

fellow subsidiaries

General information of the holding company:

The Bank is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin
Investment Limited (“Central Huijin”) is the
controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC”)
which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in
certain other entities in the PRC.

The Bank enters into banking and other transactions
with these entities in the normal course of business
which mainly include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions. The activities were
on substantially the same terms, including interest
rates and security, as for comparable transactions
with third party counterparties.

Transactions with holding company and its fellow
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

2024 2023
AT ERMBAE AT FRREAE
Holding Fellow Holding Fellow
company  subsidiaries company  subsidiaries
214,382 43,980 949,826 72,753
2,723,345 - 2,287,523 795,757
5,205,620 239,685 3,090,931 242,926
13,146,544 1,610,176 29,878,696 1,881,279
- 688,439 - 79,801
1,640,668 - - -
67,149 2,363 79,041 13,665
567,152 114,558 1,083,852 172,282
2,200 6,194 2,107 6,512
1,860 4,738 2,657 2,832
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12. EAMER S (&) 12. Material related party transactions (continued)
(2) HEEEURRS - (IR - B R (2) Transactions with government authorities,
HAh A PRI ERINA S agencies, affiliates and other state controlled

entities

rhEE A B S B [ s e 2 2 v 4% e [ The Bank is subject to the control of the State
SEAERITE IS - M EE AR Council of the PRC Government through CIC and
IR BRI 7% Fe T im B E e ~ fCT Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly
T~ P MR Ry At R A e R controls a significant number of entities through its
B R B A B A B AT government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
B S (R B Jiﬁ,%\%% « AT other state controlled entities. The Bank enters into

banking transactions with government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at
commercial terms.

T~ IRt s A B P B e
TTHRSI TSRS ©

BT S IR EA RN TAI&E These transactions include, but are not limited to,
the following:
- EE REE AR TR0 - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and
deposit taking;
- SMTREIZEZ I 4EER - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
- B S E O] H A A e — sales, purchases and redemption of bonds issued
FRERSRT I ES by other state controlled entities;
- TROLINE - PERKRAHRRRE IR - provision of foreign exchange, remittance and
investment related services;
- WEEALEE  THETHE - BEK — purchase of utilities, transport,
TEARTS - telecommunication and postage services.
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12. EREEERS (8) 12. Material related party transactions (continued)
(3) HEATNK S (3) Transactions with subsidiaries
AESRITHI B AT EEL ST ¢ The main transactions that the Bank entered into
with subsidiaries are as follows:
2024 2023
FERZ G R Transaction balances as at 31
December
BRI Deposits from customers 13,181 47,659
BEHKZEMEMER Loan commitments and other credit
FREE commitments - -
FERXGEEE Transaction amounts during
the year
FESZH Interest expense 1,094 6,960
AR5 E B2 Fee and commission expense 3,243 3,674
HnaL s A Other operating income 73,807 173,777
KeaEZH Other operating expenses 882 934
RERT F B ASINEANE AT - The general information of the principal
subsidiaries is as follows:
HEE i
B SEA B TR, B FEZN Aty ARG
Place of Direct Indirect
incorporation interest interest
Name and operation  Principal activities Share capital held held
REREHEARATE P ERA P97 3,000,000 HirZ HrZ
t+t —+=
Companhia de Macao Investment holding MOP 3,000,000 77% 23%
Investimento Predial
Triumph, Limitada
R EEARAE bl eSSl BT 8,000,000  FHyZ HrZ—
PAR AN
Sociedade de Fomento Macao Property holding MOP 8,000,000 98% 2%

Predial Tak Kei, Limitada
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12. EARRRBRS (&)

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

12. Material related party transactions (continued)

(4) B A FIHIR S

ASRITIE — M P S R B S B T
5 BAFRREK > B HLA AR R
1T KU B RS - Bl EREI 5

(4) Transactions with associates

The Bank enters into banking transactions with
associates in the normal course of business on
commercial terms. These include deposit taking,

other normal banking businesses and financial
services. The main transactions that the Bank
entered into with associates are as follows:

REARAL G BB AT -

2024 2023

FERRRGREE Transaction balances as at 31
December
B E{EE Deposits from customers 665,840 876,686
BEAE Subordinated liabilities - -
FEARGEHE Transaction amounts
during the year

FIETH Interest expense 30,528 31,223
e S A Fee and commission income 31,757 31,845
4L Other operating expenses 23,650 8,318

AIRIT RS SRRV EEATE T

The general information of the associates is as follows:

e FEM R OTIEE  FESER (EZIN Ry
Place of
incorporation Principal
Name and operation activities Share capital Interest held
FrEFREAERAE AP TRbs BT 40,000,000 BHAZ=F/A
Companhia de Seguros Luen Macao Insurance MOP 40,000,000 38%
Fung Hang, S.A.R.L.
e ASRERGERAE  EFY TRbs WFT 100,000,000 HOZ T
Companhia de Seguros Luen Macao Insurance MOP 100,000,000 29%

Fung Hang — VIDA, S.A.
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12. EARRBRS (&)

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

12. Material related party transactions (continued)

(5) EARFEEF A BRI
BRI E T B e A I 8 R E

PR 1B SRR AR TSI A L
BEEE  BEERTREKE -

B S B N B S 45 55 H B A

(5) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank,
directly or indirectly, including members of Board
of Directors, Supervisory Committee and
President Office.

The key management compensation during each

YIF reporting date is as follows:
2024 2023
B S A ER B Salaries and other short-term
THEF] employee benefits 20,270 28,580

ARSRATINBIERIT e Az N B 2 R e
HAR ~ HRRENRE R 2 HZER R E R
BN F R S B R R
BEFE L HE AR R B — R A
HEGRFNZEE - SRS (03 )
AEES SRR -

The Bank provided credit facilities to and accepted
deposits from key management personnel of the
Bank and its holding companies, their close family
members and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The credit
facilities extended and deposit taken were
provided in the ordinary course of business and on
substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with persons of a similar standing or,
where applicable, with other employees.

2024 2023

FERR GHRE Transaction balances as at 31
December

B HoA IRIE Advances and other accounts 350,502 291,553
BT Deposits from customers 1,211,784 879,735
ERORE R AE Loan commitments and other credit 54,721

K commitments 38,749
FENRTBEEE Transaction amounts

during the year

FIEUA Interest income 12,498 9,440
FIESZH Interest expense 45,515 34,078
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(BREFRIEEISN - SEREALS RRPTTTT)

AP e EHEE A 25 004/B/2024 —
DSB /AMCM 5 {# R0 (AR5 eEET55 1)
BOK - PEEAREE L Z M B E R

1.

1.1

BEAEH

AR E AT H ¥ R R SRR 4 1Y
MG EHEEIES 103 £ 105 H ©

AR AT % ] R

B E b o

BHARERER A

BL—FEA

PR ZN

TEIE R R R AR R <
PREE E1 bR

At

EEERIEE
TTHEEE b A

BB A

BB AT

HA—FEA
(=354 Z N N1 -4
HAr M TR

-Sin LR N I i

—EEARFER

010/B/2023-DSB
/AMCM SRERS - St REEAES K
R EE - SfEEEERRE - 15 ERER &

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL

INFORMATION

1. Capital management
Summary information on the terms and conditions of
the main features of capital instruments is disclosed
on pages 103 to 105.

operational risk.

1.1 The composition of own funds

Common equity tier 1
( “CET1” ) capital

Ordinary share capital

Legal, statutory and other reserves
Retained earnings

Others @

Regulatory deductions
Premises revaluation reserve
Regulatory reserves

Net common equity tier 1
capital
(“ATI”)

Additional Tier 1

capital

Qualifying preference share capital
and other equity instruments
Qualifying preference
premium

share

Net tier 1 capital

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

According to Circular No. 004/B/2024 - DSB/AMCM -
Guideline on Disclosure of Financial Information,
unaudited supplementary financial information disclosed:

The Bank follows the Circular No.010/B/2023-
DSB/AMCM to calculate its own funds, risk-weighted
exposures, including credit risk, market risk and

2024 2023
1,000,000 1,000,000
6,567,260 6,351,900
3,977,360 6,002,266
3,025,535 1,907,738
14,570,155 15,261,904
2,820,324 3,055,806
3,836,360 3,621,000
6,656,684 6,676,806
7,913,471 8,585,098
3,079,500 3,079,500
3,575,000 3,575,000
6,654,500 6,654,500
14,567,971 15,239,598
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1. EBELEHE @@ 1. Capital management (continued)
1.1 ERERED &) 1.1 The composition of own funds (continued)
2024 2023
—ERE AT Net tier 1 capital 14,567,971 15,239,598
ZHEAR Tier 2 capital
ZHEARTE Issued tier 2 capital instruments 3,700,250 2,060,000
AR ARUE 2B oy Eligible portion of provision reserve 1,319,177 2,038,133
Eligible portion of premises
o Et AfTHEE (A revaluation reserve 1,269,146 1,375,113
6,288,573 5,473,246
BEARFE Net capital 20,856,544 20,620,370
FEE - Notes:
(1) T RIMEERRITE AN DA R EE (1) This mainly represented exchange differences from the
2 H et AHMGFEE R eRE E translation of foreign operations and gains/(losses) on

1.2

RS -

BEATE R

RL— S EA TR

—HEA TR
BAT e ER

financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

1.2 Capital adequacy ratio

2024 2023
Common equity tier 1 capital o o
adequacy ratio 5:14% 4:99%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.47% 8.86%
Capital adequacy ratio 13.56% 12.04%
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REFZZ R BEER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL

INFORMATION

(FREFRIEISN » SEEEAS BBEFITTIT)
1.3 ERAEZEATRIER

AIRIT 2 FERG N B Rl e N RILFI B EE
IR B R A B -t BRI TR B IR
NHE - RIBEIR S RE B EHAAES 2023
4 5% (BEFEIRTENEHIE) 5120
EATREREN TRIIR -

1.3

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Capital adequacy ratio of the holding company

The Bank’s holding company is Bank of China Limited,
a joint stock company with limited liability
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China. The
calculation of Capital adequacy ratio of the holding
company is in accordance with Capital Rules for
Commercial Banks (J.J.Z.J.L [2023] No. 4) issued by
the National Financial Regulatory Administration.

2024 2023
EHE eS|
Group Group

O —EARTE R Common equity tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 12.20% 11.63%
—IRERTER Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 14.38% 13.83%
BEAT Bt Capital adequacy ratio 18.76% 17.74%

113



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED
MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

REFZZ R BEER
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2.

2.1

INFORMATION

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

15 F LR 2. Credit risk
BE_ZEWFE+_H=+—H > &X8i17% 2.1 As at 31 December 20234 the Bank makes a
R o THEA S (4 BB 7 1S P TR R 22 282K management overlay with the approval of CIMC for
SEAb B FR A THHEA(S F R S M A SR BE Rz B Fij it its portfolio to factors in unexpected credit risk
PRt AR EREFFREEHE SIS deterioration not incorporated in the current ECL
RHEEH G T T EHEE - models.
RIS E N UK SEEREE ~ PRIEE ~ 56598 Loans and commitments, placements with banks,
EERFE R OTAE T B E (R E|EEDEZ securities investments and financial derivatives (at
FEEFE 10%s DL _EAVHEIE - B DL NSRS notional amount) classified by geographical regions
75T e over or equal to 10% of the respective credit exposures.
2024
HrEIE R - .
TR E R i 74T
b S a g il Region Placements with . .
Loans and .. Financial
. banks and securities ..
commitments . derivatives
mvestments
B Macao
- SR1TIEIZE - Other credit institutions - 1,201,196 -
-BUR ~ NEHERE | - Public sector 476,056 8,238,778 -
- N\HEIMFE ~ JEE | - Corporations/ Legal entities 27,091,122 - -
- {EA - Individuals 37,701,244 - -
&% Hong Kong
- SR1TIEIZE - Other credit institutions - 1,819,805 4,465,282
- BURF ~ 2\ 1% | - Public sector - 822,203 -
- NEIZE ~ JEE | - Corporations/ Legal entities 20,266,242 2,382,784 -
- {EA - Individuals 1,047,310 - -
S8] G | AN iiA Mainland China
- $RTTEIZE - Other credit institutions - 9,294,234 -
- BURF ~ V&% RE | - Public sector - 11,008 -
- NEIZE ~ JEE | - Corporations/ Legal entities 45,214,785 15,398,428 -
- {EA - Individuals 1,116,337 - -
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2.

2.1

EHERE &

PRI S0 BROREREREH ~ RIFEIZE ~ 567715
B OTA TR E SRR BB (534
R 10%E 0L ERYHTIE - B DU T E S

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2, Credit risk (continued)
2.1 Loans and commitments, placements with banks,

securities investments and financial derivatives (at
notional amount) classified by geographical regions

5T e over or equal to 10% of the respective credit exposures.
2023
SR RS e PR T
s fgon tomsana |, P 8 | rianc
commitments investments derivatives
Py Macao
- $RTTEIZE - Other credit institutions - 1,781,110 -
- B ~ NSRS | - Public sector 479,850 6,862,028 -
- ANHI{EZE - 7EE | - Corporations/ Legal entities 27,200,859 - -
-fEA - Individuals 37,971,466 - -
& Hong Kong
- $RTTEIZE - Other credit institutions - 1,586,319 3,866,786
SR - VS HERE | - Public sector - 843,714 -
- NE{R3E ~ JAE | - Corporations/ Legal entities 19,285,467 5,520,745 -
- @A - Individuals 1,099,134 - -
ch B A Mainland China
- RITEIE - Other credit institutions - 13,428,647 -
- BURF ~ AEWERS | - Public sector - 56,951 -
- AHE]3E - 7AH | - Corporations/ Legal entities 55,942,417 19,047,622 -
-EA - Individuals 1,041,268 - -
B Britain
- $RfTEIZE - Other credit institutions - - 828,339
- AHE]3E - 7AH | - Corporations/ Legal entities 282,291 - -
HE Britain
- $RfTEIZE - Other credit institutions - - 719,597
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KRB BEER UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
(BREFRIEFEERSN » SEEREAIY BP9 T ToT) (Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2 FHEE @& 2  Credit risk (continued)

2.2 B KT 2.2 Debt securities and certificates of deposit
FEHURIE ZE Fi AT [R5 56 275 A7 ke 1% Gross debt securities and certifcates of deposit
TR R PEER T T before impairment allowances are analysed by the

five-category classifications and stage

determination as follows:

2024
PEEE— PR — PEEE= iy
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
UAnEEESER Investment in securities
HeEghEt A=At at fair value through
2HEWEEZ S other comprehensive
B& income
ER Pass 24,842,199 785,295 - 25,627,494
fHE Special Mention - - - _
RER Substandard - R R )
o] &5 Doubtful - - - -
Ak Loss . B} ) )
24,842,199 785,295 - 25,627,494
Hrp Of which,
NP ER impairment allowances (10,316) (1,986) - (12,302)
Dl#Est A 2> Investmentin
BHE securities at
amortised cost
F& Pass 15,739,104 1,471,081 - 17,210,185
BEE Special Mention - - - i
RER Substandard - - - _
] Doubitful - - - _
Ei=ES Loss - - 2,464,171 2,464,171
15,739,104 1,471,081 2,464,171 19,674,356
Hr e Of which,
JEE HE impairment allowances (1,364) (17,786) (1,605,664) (1,624,814)
15,737,740 1,453,295 858,507 18,049,542
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REFZ T HE T

(BREFRIEEISN - BRI BB TTTT)

2 EAERER @&

2.2 BGEH MEEE

()

SEHUBE R AT (R0 S Aakai s
TR PR (8D ¢

BanEENER
HEEE A KA
EHRERZ B
Eitag
1EH
F13pES
Rk
]

EiPS

Hrp e
TR{E (G

DAt R
Feozzicd

1EH
BiE
RER
HT%E
Bk

oo
S 4

Investment in securities
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Of which,
impairment allowances

Investment in
securities at
amortised cost

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Of which,
impairment allowances

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise
stated)

2  Credit risk (continued)

2.2 Debt securities and certificates of deposit
(continued)
Gross debt securities and certifcates of deposit
before impairment allowances are analysed by the
five-category classifications and stage
determination as follows (continued):

2023

P e — PEEE— PEEE= HaEt

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
25,243,109 619,720 - 25,862,829
25,243,109 619,720 - 25,862,829
(17,137) (1,220) - (18,357)
11,074,224 1,577,530 - 12,651,754
- - 1,130,579 1,130,579
- - 1,284,441 1,284,441
11,074,224 1,577,530 2,415,020 15,066,774
(510) (53,939) (1,517,376) (1,571,825)
11,073,714 1,523,591 897,644 13,494,949

117



HSRITRAD B R /AE) TAI FUNG BANK LIMITED

MR 235 DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

REFZ T HE T

(BREFRIEEISN - SEREALS RRPTTTT)

3.

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

1) g 3. Interest rate risk
RTE A ETHBERN R EEETE > WEEE Interest rate risk is monthly measured and submitted
WS RE T EER - HARE 5%RITE to AMCM quarterly. Only currency that accounts for
EE A G R EE R - more than 5% of either banking book assets or
liabilities is required to be reported.
TREBEMEREHEFFEG 2 (FIE The following table demonstrates, in accordance the
B EEIET]) » BERNASRIT FEMRIE Guideline on Management of Interest Rate Risk
A ERF B A SR T &R EE A F 2 > DL issued by AMCM, the net impact to the economic value
Bz 200 EELRETREEIHERMEE of the Bank with an assumed parallel shift of 200 basis
HNRESL - points throughout different time spectrum multiplied
by different weighting factors for different currencies.
2024 2023
T Currencies
R TT MOP 137,287 230,423
AT HKD (247,081)  (322,400)
RIT USD 1,457,407 1,521,569
NN CNY (159,013) 57,337
(G HEE SN Impact on economic value as % of own
funds 5.90% 6.79%
i E b 4. Market risk
4N e 4.1 Foreign currency risk

D U TFRAIRTREEH EFHA &
B R SEST ¢

i) The following is an analysis of the Bank’s total net
long and short positions in foreign currencies on
the reporting date:

EAEHESONERE
RBEGER)
Net open position
including option contracts
Long or shorts

2024 2023
T Currencies
ETT Hong Kong dollar (HKD) (22,521,856) (23,214,355)
EIT United States dollar (USD) 30,668,851 32,354,385
Hofh B s Other currencies 263,723 278,157
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41

TR (&)
SMEEE (&)

) THIRARTIRERH Z A DR ii)
PEFRFEFEH 10% 2 K E B

AT
B &
R & {5
BHHEA
I
AR/ EFH
=TT
R & 2
R & {55
EIHE A
B

FEItR/GE) B4

T R

DUN AT GE T N Z i bRy & A

BRI

BEAEXR

B2 s LA ZF AR R OT 42
T EHIF € b

{25 BEFAHRRAY T T
e ) 2% e e 9 — e
S

HechEE b

4N L gz

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL

INFORMATION

4. Market risk (continued)

4.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

The following is an analysis of the Bank for the
net position of a particular foreign currency

consititutes not less than 10% of the total net
position in all foreign currencies on the reporting

date:

Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities
Forward purchases
Forward sales

Net long/(short) position in HKD
US dollars

Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Forward purchases

Forward sales

Net long/(short) position in USD

4.2 Market risk

2024

11,035,975
(30,948,332)
814,892
(3,424,391)

2023

14,528,588
(32,763,544)
99,625
(5,079,024)

(23,214,355)

(23,214,355)

31,758,737 33,446,662
(2,122,616) (2,118,268)
3,331,386 2,125,943
(2,298,655) (1,099,952)
30,668,852 32,354,385

The following is an analysis of the Bank’s capital

requirement for market risk on the balance sheet date:

Capital requirements

Specific risk of debt securities and
debt derivatives

General market risk of debt
securities, debt derivatives and
interest rate exposures

Equity exposures

Foreign exchange exposures

2024

20

30
933
45,886

2023

733

513
73,830
42,909
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BRIEE b

HRIERE b5 A e E N ERRR ~ (5 50
FAGMR T U INRBEFATIE IR R
JE\fzz -

Ryt bl b e 1T A A ST ~ BE A
PERIRIGRE > AT ERIER 240 EER
% WETLHRIE B B EAH RS A A
YR E R b E B BUR R AR - B R b
ERAPERIRTAL ~ R ez « BRI UE
& T HE T R F e b e B T AE ] -

AT EH G — [ BT 58 SR E AR A
M5 5 THYBE R - DU Rz flrY
FHEEE  INERZE8 soA il TSR HIE
BRERAR - TSR E RN SRRt 4570
{EREMRF R 1 b S5 IR S5 AL A P RETE ~ B2
EuER22EE > WHGEEERIEX -

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

5.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss caused by
inadequacy in internal control procedures,
information technology systems, personnel and
external events.

In order to effectively identify, evaluate, monitor,
control and mitigate such risks, the Bank has set up in
place an operational risk management policies and
procedures, and has established a well developed
operational risk management system to ensure an
appropriate and effective process in place for
managing operational risk, such as implemented
operational risk management mechanisms by using
operational risk and control assessment, risk indicator
monitoring, and loss data collection tools.

The management has constantly made efforts to
improve its internal control procedures and
strengthen the employee training programs to
promote continuous improvement of risk control
mechanisms and compliance culture. Furthermore,
the Bank has also established guidelines for
operational procedures to deal with sudden and
unforeseeable events. Resources have also been put
aside to set up a computer back-up system with an
objective of reducing the likelihood and impact of the
emergence of operational risk and its related impacts
to an acceptable level and complying with the
requirements of the regulatory authority.
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T B b 6. Liquidity risk
) B EIEE (RROK) - i) Average weekly liquidity (Position of Macao office
only) :

2024 2023

FREEEEEREIIR S Minimum weekly amount of cash in
ZEEREEK hand 2,540,601 2,621,262

HREVEEE 2 RE B Average weekly amount of cash in
BEEER hand 2,981,338 2,980,350
TRENER A A Net liquidity position 440,647 359,088

i) REESIEER (RROK) ii) Liquidity ratio (Position of Macao office only)
2024 2023
Sl A REESEE® Average one-month liquidity ratio 115.41% 103.10%
S =E HREE4tb®  Average three-month liquidity ratio 72.11% 67.86%
i) SEEREEERE iii) The average solvency assets
2024 2023
HEEE Solvency assets 67,122,076 62,140,258
S YIN= Underlying liabilities 140,385,253 132,673,392
REEEEEAAMELZR  Ratio of solvency assets to underlying
liabilities 47.81% 46.84%
SRICTETR 7. Financial derivatives

TE R RRITHEHEEMEMEEFS
011/2015-AMCM 5@ S E st B4
THEZ(EHEEIRESEH

The following is the credit risk weighted amount of
financial derivatives computation follows AMCM
guidelines Notice No. 011/2015-AMCM:

2024 2023
FIREE Interest rate contracts - -
HNE R = AT Foreign exchange and gold contracts 28,161 31,626
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8. HEHMAMEBERS 5% ZE 8. List of institutions with more than 5%
interests
THBASRT _EIUFE R —E - =FH The following is the list of institutions in which the
EHEMA I E AR 5% L - HEEATE Bank has holdings in excess of 5% in the share capital
AR B BRI EE 12 - during 2024 and 2023. The general information of
relevant institutions is disclosed in note 12.
ARERITIE — M R R T ol 2 i g A ] The Bank enters into banking transactions with below
K N\ EETARE S - subsidiaries and associates in the normal course of

business on commercial terms.

T HERA A R A A
Direct Indirect
Name interest held interest held
REREHEARAE Bazt+t HAZ 1=
Companhia de Investimento Predial Triumph, Limitada 77% 23%
ML EFEARAE =) e AN Harz—
Sociedade de Fomento Predial Tak Kei, Limitada 98% 2%
i = Orba AR A E] Baz=1/\ =z
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang, S.A.R.L. 38% Nil
B S = NS RERA A IRAF BHoZ 1 =z
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang-VIDA, S.A. 29% Nil
=24
52
-END-
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